Wiltshire Council

~—"->~. Where everybody matters

AGENDA

Meeting: Health Select Committee

Place: Council Chamber - Council Offices, Monkton Park, Chippenham,
SN15 1ER

Date: Tuesday 10 September 2013

Time: 10.30 am

Please direct any enquiries on this Agenda to Samuel Bath, of Democratic Services,
County Hall, Bythesea Road, Trowbridge, direct line (01225) 718211 or email
samuel.bath@uwiltshire.gov.uk

Press enquiries to Communications on direct lines (01225) 713114/713115.

This Agenda and all the documents referred to within it are available on the Council’s
website at www.wiltshire.gov.uk

Membership:
Clir Chris Caswill Clir John Noeken (Vice Chairman)
Cllir Mary Champion Clir Jeff Osborn
Clir Christine Crisp (Chair) Clir Sheila Parker
Clir Mary Douglas CliIr Nina Phillips
Clir Bob Jones MBE CliIr Pip Ridout
Clir Gordon King CliIr Ricky Rogers

Clir Dr Helena McKeown

Substitutes:
Clir Pat Aves Clir David Jenkins
Clir Chuck Berry Clir Julian Johnson
Clir Rosemary Brown Clir John Knight
Clir Terry Chivers ClIr lan McLennan
Clir Dennis Drewett Clir Helen Osborn
Cllr Sue Evans Cllr Mark Packard

Clir Russell Hawker

Stakeholders:
Steve Wheeler Healthwatch Wiltshire
Dorothy Roberts Wiltshire & Swindon Users Network (WSUN)

Brian Warwick Advisor on Social Inclusion for Older People



PART |

Items to be considered whilst the meeting is open to the public

Apologies

Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Pages 71 - 8)

To approve and sign the minutes of the meeting held on 2 July 2013.

Declarations of Interest

To receive any declarations of disclosable interests or dispensations granted by
the Standards Committee.

Chairman's Announcements

To receive announcements from the Chairman.

Public Participation

The Council welcomes contributions from members of the public.
Statements

If you would like to make a statement at this meeting on any item on this
agenda, please register to do so at least 10 minutes prior to the meeting. Up to
3 speakers are permitted to speak for up to 3 minutes each on any agenda item.
Please contact the officer named above for any further clarification.

Questions

To receive any questions from members of the public or members of the
Council received in accordance with the constitution. Those wishing to ask
questions are required to give notice of any such questions in writing to the
officer named above no later than 5pm on Monday 2 September 2013. Please
contact the officer named on the first page of this agenda for further advice.
Questions may be asked without notice if the Chairman decides that the matter
is urgent.

Details of any questions received will be circulated to Committee members prior
to the meeting and made available at the meeting and on the Council’s website.

Update from Care Quality Commission

At its meeting on 30 May the Committee considered the report from the Care
Quality Commission (CQC) on the unannounced inspection of the Royal United
Hospital (RUH) and the action plan developed by the hospital in response to the



inspection report. The Chief Executive of the RUH attended the Committee
meeting on 2 July to provide an update on the progress of the action plan.

The CQC subsequently returned to the RUH for a follow-up inspection and
publication of its report was expected at the end of July. The Committee agreed
that the CQC would be invited to its next meeting in September to present the
findings of the follow-up report. The report has yet to be published.

A representative from the CQC will be in attendance to provide an overview of

the new arrangements for the CQC and provide an update on the position of the
RUH inspection.

Adults Safequarding Annual Report 2012/13 (Pages 9 - 76)

The Council has lead responsibility in relation to safeguarding adults who are
defined as vulnerable or at risk. The annual report of the Wiltshire Safeguarding
Adults Board (WSAB) reviews the work of the Board and sets out its priorities
for the coming year.

Margaret Sheather, independent chair of the WSAB, will be in attendance to
present the WSAB Annual Report 2012-13.

The Committee will be asked to:
a) Note and comment on the Adults Safeguarding Annual Report 2012/13.

b) Identify any specific issues it wishes to be brought to the attention of the
Health and Wellbeing Board when it receives the report.

CCG Transformation Programme

At the request of the Committee Deborah Fielding, Accountable Officer of the
CCG will make a presentation on the CCG’s Community Transformation
programme.

Forward Work Programme (Pages 77 - 78)

A series of meetings is underway for the chair and vice chair to meet key health
partners, as requested by the Management Committee. Meetings have already
been held with the CQC, Wiltshire Healthwatch, and the Chief Executive of the
RUH. Further meetings have been organised with the Chief Executives of the
Salisbury Hospital, Great Western Hospital and the Royal National Hospital for
Rheumatic Diseases, as well as the CCG and the Cabinet member for Public
Health and Adult Social Care.

It is hoped that the meetings will help shape the Committee’s work programme
and the outcome of the meetings will be reported to the Committee once they
have been completed. The Committee will be aware that Council will be asked



10

11

to agree the Business Plan at its meeting on 3 September. The Business Plan
will also influence the direction of the Committee’s work programme, in
consultation with health partners.

Work is progressing in respect of the Committee’s resolutions in relation to the
Francis Report. Meetings have been held with the communications team to
look at opportunities to promote the Committee’s work to the public. Officers
have set up, and are trialling, a mechanism for monitoring local media reports
for items of interest to the Committee. Initial discussions have been held with
Healthwatch to consider how best to gather and make use of complaints data
and to agree future roles and responsibilities. Discussions have begun with the
acute trusts on ‘linking’ in some form to help inform the Quality Accounts. All of
this work is continuing and the Committee will be kept informed as to further
progress.

Meeting dates have now been finalised for all but one of the Task Groups, and it

is hoped to confirm the date for that shortly. The list of Task Groups can be
seen on the attached document.

Urgent Items

To consider any other items of business that the Chairman agrees to consider
as a matter of urgency.

Date of Next Meeting

The next meeting of the Health Select Committee will be Tuesday 19
November 2013 at 10:30 am in the Council Chamber, Council Offices,
Monkton Park, Chippenham, SN15 1ER.



Wiltsniiie Coundcil

~—-_ Where everybody matters

HEALTH SELECT COMMITTEE

DRAFT MINUTES OF THE HEALTH SELECT COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 2
JULY 2013 AT CIVIC CENTRE, ST STEPHENS PLACE, TROWBRIDGE, BA14
8AH.

Present:

Clir Mary Champion (Substitute), Clir Christine Crisp (Chair), Clir Mary Douglas,

Linda Giriffiths, Clir Bob Jones MBE, Clir Gordon King (Substitute), Clir Helena McKeown,
Clir John Noeken (Vice-Chair), Clir Jeff Osborn, Clir Sheila Parker, Clir Nina Phillips,

Clir Pip Ridout, CliIr Ricky Rogers, Mr Brian Warwick and Steve Wheeler

Also Present:

ClIr Simon Killane

76 Apologies
Apologies were received from Clir Peter Hutton.

Clir Gordon King substituted for the Liberal Democrat Vacancy.
Clir Mary Champion substituted for Clir Peter Hutton

77 Minutes of the Previous Meeting

The Minutes of the meeting held 30 May 2013 were presented, and subject to
the amendment to ltem 62: Apologies, it was,

Resolved:

The minutes of the meeting held 30 May 2013 were signed and approved
as a true and accurate record.

78 Declarations of Interest

Clir Mary Douglas declared that her husband was a nurse, employed at
Salisbury District Hospital.

Clir Mary Douglas also declared a non pecuniary interest relating to item 12 on
the agenda.

Page 1



79

80

81

Clir Helena McKeown declared that she was Vice-Chairman of the Wiltshire
Local Medical Committee and a practicing GP.

Chairman's Announcements

The Chairman outlined that the Overview and Scrutiny (O & S) Management
Committee required the Committee to review the draft Business Plan before the
Cabinet meeting on 23 July. As a result the Chairman proposed that the
Committee scrutinise the Business Plan under urgent items.

The Chairman informed the Committee that the future of the joint Health
Overview and Scrutiny Committee (HOSC) for the Great Western Ambulance
Service (GWAS), needed to be decided, following the acquisition of GWAS by
the South Western Ambulance Service Trust. This will be discussed and
agreed under urgent items, informed by an update from Clir Pip Ridout, who
attended a recent meeting of the joint HOSC.

The Chairman stated that the CQC would be in attendance at the September
Committee meeting, to report on the follow-up inspection at the RUH. The
report from the inspection would be released into the public domain by the end
of July 2013.

The Chairman also noted the error on the front of the agenda, detailing
membership to the committee, and apologised to Steve Wheeler of Healthwatch
for the omission of his name.

Public Participation
No questions from the public were received.
Royal United Hospital (RUH) inspection update

James Scott, Chief Executive, RUH gave a presentation to the Committee. He
was accompanied by Francesca Thomson, Chief Operating Officer, and Mary
Lewis, Director of Nursing, who responded to members’ questions. The
presentation included a summary of the inspection undertaken by the CQC in
February 2013, which was noted as being a responsive visit.

The presentation detailed the numbers of nursing staff at the hospital. The
numbers had increased over the past three years, with the number of nurses
per bed being 2.44. The Chief Executive stated that there had been some
problems retaining healthcare assistants but there were no issues surrounding
the recruitment of registered nurses.

The role of agency nurses in regard to the CQC inspection in February was

discussed, and it was considered that they were not a substantial causative
factor in the outcomes from the February 2013 inspection.

Page 2



82

83

The Chief Executive highlighted how the RUH was co-operating with partners,
and outlined the role of the clinical forum that was launched in May 2013. In
addition the RUH had appointed a Discharge Development Manager to work
with health and social care partners, and had named safeguarding leads that
were now engaging with partners.

The Committee asked questions surrounding A&E pressures during the black
escalation period at the time of the inspection in February 2013. It was
concluded that more senior consultants had been rostered to the Medical
Assessment Unit to manage the admission and discharge of patients.

The Committee discussed care package arrangements available to discharged
patients. James Scott confirmed work was being done to integrate domiciliary
and acute care into the wider care package available in discharge planning at
the admission stage.

The Committee then questioned the discussions the RUH had following the
inspection with the wider medical community and, in particular, the Avon &
Wiltshire Local Medical Committees. It was confirmed that the RUH had also
held discussions with the Wiltshire and BANES CCG’s.

The Committee queried the budget development at RUH, and discussed the
payment by results tariff. The Chief Executive also outlined the repayment of
the Department of Health loan that had been repaid in full in March 2013.

A discussion was held about the use of the Day Surgery Unit to manage
inpatients during the escalation period. The Chief Executive stated that there
were plans to utilise the day care unit in future for short stay treatment during
escalation periods as it was equipped and appropriate to manage this.
Changes to health scrutiny regulations

Resolved:

To note the report and the Officer recommendations contained within.

Francis Report and implications for health scrutiny

The Committee considered the implications of the recommendations in the
report and outlined the importance of these in relation to the business plan.

The Committee discussed the possibility of linking Select Committee members
as representatives to acute trusts across the region. The role of Healthwatch
was highlighted and the powers at its disposal to ‘enter and view'. The
possibility of linking with nominated members in this capacity was also
considered.

Page 3



84

The scrutiny of Quality Accounts (QA) was considered and the Committee
outlined the importance of engaging with partners to ensure that the QA
process would be effective.

In response to criticism of minute-taking in Staffordshire, it was noted that a
verbatim record of the discussions was not required but that if a member of the
Committee wished a particular item to be recorded in the minutes, they should
request it.

At the end of the discussion it was:

Resolved:
To note the report and the Officer recommendations, and agree the
following proposal:

a) To investigate opportunities to promote the Committee and its work
to encourage more public participation;

b) In consultation with the communications team, to require officers to
monitor local media reports and report any matters of interest to the
Committee;

c) To require officers to investigate the range of health and social care
complaints data available and liaise with Healthwatch Wiltshire and the
CQC to agree on how this can be made available to the Committee to best
effect;

d) To liaise with Healthwatch Wiltshire and the Wiltshire Health and
Wellbeing Board to agree roles and responsibilities and develop a paper
that outlines supportive arrangements to work towards similar goals.

e) To investigate with the acute trusts the possibility of establishing
‘link’ groups with the Committee to inform the Committee’s responses to
annual Quality Accounts.

Forward Work Programme

The Committee noted the written update from Harmoni, and received a verbal
update from Debbie Fielding, Accountable Officer, Wiltshire CCG, with regard to
NHS 111 performance. The Committee highlighted some concern over the
performance in this area. Ms Fielding was able to clarify the steady
improvement in key performance areas, and stressed that further improvement
would still be needed before the system would be launched in full.

lan Biggs, Area Director, and Reine Corley, Assistant Director Clinical Strategy,
represented the Bath, Glos, Swindon and Wiltshire (BGSW) area of NHS
England. They provided a brief update on the proposed changes to vascular
services in the region. Committee members discussed the proposed hub and

Page 4



85

spoke model and highlighted concerns over the viability of some services in the
region as a result of the proposals. It was confirmed that routine treatment could
still be offered in the region, but specialist treatment would be provided at one of
the three proposed hubs.

The Committee noted the items on the forward work plan and reviewed the
appointments to task groups. The following expressions of interest were
received for task group membership;
e CliIr Jeff Osborn and Mr Brian Warwick to the Continence Services Task
Group; and,
e Clir Nina Phillips to the Review of AWP Services Task Group.

Following these discussions it was:

Resolved:
To note the update from Harmoni and the CCG regarding NHS 111; and

To note the vascular services update from NHS England.
Urgent Items

The Chairman outlined the Urgent Items for consideration. These were;

2a Consideration of the Business Plan

The Committee agreed that of the ‘“12 deliverables’ as identified by the O & S
Management Committee on 25 June 2013, two were directly related to
Health. These were:

#5) Support the most vulnerable in our local communities and improve our
safeguarding services; and,

#10) Integrate public health at the heart of all public services.

It was noted that the Business Plan was an ‘aspirational document’, and that
the Council faced a difficult task to balance the plan against financial
restraints.

It was stated that it lacked some key information on timeframes, actions and
budgets, and it was suggested that it was difficult to envisage how some of
the plans could be implemented without this information.

A formal objection was raised in relation to the limited time the Committee
had been given to consider the Business Plan.

It was stated that the plan lacked key focus on sustainability, children’s

health and obesity. It was suggested that impact assessments for children
should be conducted on all corporate strategies.

Page 5



86

2b

The Committee welcomed the Officer recommendations made in the Francis
report and implications for Health Scrutiny report (above) and felt that they
should be incorporated into the Committee’s response to the Business Plan.
The Committee agreed that the Plan needed greater focus on partnership
working.

At the culmination of the discussion, it was

Resolved:

1) To incorporate the recommendations from the Francis Report
and implications for Health Scrutiny report into considerations
for the plan.

2) To suggest the inclusion of greater focus on children,
sustainable futures and obesity.

To further consider the Business Plan as the Committee work plan
evolves.

Future Scrutiny of SWAS

CliIr Pip Ridout explained that the previous GWAS region, covering six local
authority areas, was now SWAST (northern region). SWAST covered 14
local authority areas but joint scrutiny arrangements did not exist outside the
northern region; SWAST would welcome further joint scrutiny arrangements.
The existing joint HOSC had requested that each participating health select
committee should consider whether or not it wanted the current joint
arrangements to continue, noting that new terms of reference would have to
be developed. The ‘pros and cons’ of continuing the joint HOSC were
explained and it was confirmed that scrutiny officer support would be
available to members attending the joint HOSC.

Resolved:
To support the continuation of a joint HOSC to scrutinise the
SWAST(northern region);

That should the joint HOSC continue, Clir Pip Ridout or Clir John
Noeken would represent Wiltshire Council at future meetings.

Date of Next Meeting

The date of the next meeting was confirmed as 17 September 2013 at
10:30am in the Council Chamber, Monkton Park, Chippenham SN15 1ER.

POST MEETING NOTE

The date of the next meeting was changed to 10 September 2013. The venue
and time remained the same.

Page 6



87

88

Exclusion of the Press and Public

Resolved:
To exclude press and public from the next part of the meeting by virtue of
Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

HTL@H Report

James Cawley, Service Director for Adult Care & Housing Strategy, presented
the report to the committee outlining progress on the HTLAH programme. This
included plans to re-tender the contract for HTLAH in some areas of Wiltshire
following the decision of Aster Homes to terminate its contract.

The Committee asked what had been learnt from the failure of the Aster
contract and what had been done to ensure this was not repeated in future. It
was confirmed that much had been learnt through discussions with providers,
including those who had tendered unsuccessfully. Discussions had also been
held with sub providers in an attempt to further understand their operational
limits.

The Committee supported the plan to welcome tenders from smaller, local
providers and questioned the role of large providers and sub-contracting in this
sector. The Committee questioned if sub-contracting would form part of the
tender criteria and, if so, how it would be evaluated. It was confirmed that whilst
the Council could not prevent providers from sub contracting work, this would
form part of the scrutiny of future tenders.

The Committee discussed the role of zero hour contracts. It supported any
moves that would remove such contracts and called for investment in the
service. There was an objection to the use of any zero hour contracts as part of
the tender agreement, in the belief that they were dangerous to staff and
provided no protection. The Committee was informed that zero hour contracts
could not be ruled out, but that the Council was working towards encouraging
salaried contracts for care staff. At the end of the discussion it was;

Resolved:

1) That adult care be invited to provide further detail on their
investigations into improving the HTLAH contracts and their
correlation with it and pay structure, and also the associated
training and retention for contracted staff; and,

2) For this to be dealt with by a task and finish group later in the year.

NB CliIr Helena McKeown abstained from voting and asked that this be
recorded.

Page 7



(Duration of meeting: 10.30 am — 1.45 pm)

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Samuel Bath, of Democratic
Services, direct line (01225) 718211, e-mail sam.bath@wiltshire.gov.uk

Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115

Page 8



Agenda ltem 7

Wiltshire Council
Health Select Committee

10" September 2013

Wiltshire Safeguarding Adults Board Annual Report 2012-13

Executive summary

The purpose of the report is to present the Annual Report of the Wiltshire
Safeguarding Adults Board (WSAB) for consideration and comment by the Select
Committee. The Annual Report reviews the work of the Board during 2012-13 and
sets out the priorities for the current year; it includes contributions from all partner
agencies. The attached report is in its final draft version, prior to sign off by the
WSAB at its meeting on 24" September. It will be presented to the Health and
Wellbeing Board at its meeting in November.

Proposal
That the committee:
a) Notes and comments on the Annual Report.

b) Identifies any specific issues it wishes to be brought to the attention of the Health
and Wellbeing Board when it receives the report.

Reason for proposal

The Council has a lead responsibility in relation to safeguarding adults who are
defined as “vulnerable” or “at risk”, which it discharges in partnership with other
agencies. The Safeguarding Board brings together those agencies at senior level to
ensure that the overall system is working in the interests of Wiltshire residents. It is
therefore appropriate that the Select Committee has the opportunity to scrutinise the
Board’s work and make its views known.

Author: Margaret Sheather, Independent Chair of Wiltshire Safeguarding Adults
Board

Contact details: & 07766-228389
>4 m.sheather@btinternet.com

Page 9



Wiltshire Safeguarding Adults Board Annual Report 2012-13

Purpose of report

1. The purpose of the report is to present the Annual Report of the Wiltshire
Safeguarding Adults Board (WSAB) for 2012-13 for consideration and comment
by the Committee.

Background

2. The purpose of the Wiltshire Safeguarding Adults Board (WSAB) is to ensure
that all agencies work together to minimise the risk of abuse to adults at risk of
harm and to protect and empower vulnerable adults effectively when abuse has
occurred or may have occurred. The WSAB aims to fulfil its purpose by:

Maintaining and developing inter-agency frameworks for safeguarding adults
in Wiltshire, including determining policy, facilitating joint training and raising
public awareness.

Co-ordinating the safeguarding adults work undertaken by those
organisations represented on the WSAB and monitoring and reviewing the
quality of services relating to safeguarding adults in Wiltshire.

3. Part of its responsibilities is to produce an Annual Report which reviews the past
year’s work and sets out priorities for the coming year. The final draft version of
the report for 2012-13 is attached as Appendix 1 to this report.

Main considerations for the committee

4. The committee may particularly wish to note the following points.

The continuing impact of changes in public service structures on the
membership and work of the Board, with several new members joining from
April 2013. Following a suggestion from this committee last year, the Fire
and Rescue Service is now joining the Board.

The progress made across the range of the Board’s responsibilities,
responding both to national change and to local needs, particularly the
development of work with service users, summarised in the Foreword.

The overall developments and achievements of the Board described in
section 3 and those of the partner agencies in section 5.

The continued increase in the volume of safeguarding work identified in
section 4 and the associated data in the Appendix

The priorities for the current year and beyond, that are set out in section?.

The full Business Plan at Appendix 1.

Environmental impact of the proposal

5. There are no environmental impacts from this report.

Page 10



Equality and diversity impact of the proposal

6. The work of the WSAB has a significant role to play in promoting equality. It
contributes to ensuring that all Wiltshire residents, whatever their circumstances
or needs for support, can live free from the fear of harm or abuse, that they are
treated with dignity and their choices respected.

Risk assessment

7. There are no specific risks associated to the proposed actions in this report.
However, the assessment and management of risk generally is central to
effective safeguarding work, both with individuals who are at risk and in the
management of safeguarding in individual organisations and by the WSAB. The
Board continues to use its risk register to ensure that it tracks the risks to the
overall safeguarding arrangements that may arise from the local and national
developments.

Financial implications

8. There are no financial implications arising directly from this report. The WSAB
does not currently have an identified budget, and discussions have started
about how to establish this on a partnership basis.

Legal implications

9. There are no legal implications arising directly from this report.

Background papers

The following unpublished documents have been relied on in the preparation of this
report: None.

Appendices

Appendix 1 — Wiltshire Safeguarding Adults Board Annual Report 2012-13.

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 12



Wiltshire Safeguarding
Adults Board

Annual Report
2012 — 2013

NHS

Wiltshire

——— everybody matters

- . -
g Wiltshire
ION SERVICE Where everyk / matte

Avon and Wiltshire m

Mental Health Partnership NHS Trust

Page 13



Contents

FOr@WOId ...cccuuiiiiieeiiiiiiiieiiiiiiineiiiiieneiinineassisstneassssssiesssssssiresssssssssnsssssssensssssssenne 3
1. Back8round.........cccceiiiiiieniiiiiiiniiiiiiiniiiiiensiiessssniressisiseassssresnssssssenns 5
2. Governance and Accountability ....ccc.ccoirreeiiiiiiiiniiiiniiniiiniaes 5
3. Summary of Activity during the Past Year ......ccccceveireeirieireeiirencrencnnncnennnnn 7
4. Monitoring and Quality Assurance ACtiVity .....cccccceeereeirenirrencrencernereeiernnenennes 9
ST o 1 g o 1= g 2= o Lo T N 13
5.1. Wiltshire COUNCIl .ccooueeiiiiieiiieeeete e e 13
5.2. Avon and Wiltshire Partnership Mental Health Trust..........cevvvvviviiiivereeieeeennen. 15
5.3, NHS WilESNIT€.ccceieeeiieecee ettt s ssaae e e s aaeeeas 16
5.4. Wiltshire Probation TrUST .......ccouiiiiiiiiiieiee et 19
5.5, WIlEShIire@ POIICE...cciiieeiieeeeee e 20
5.6. Royal United Hospital, Bath ......cccovvveieiiiiiiieeeee 22
5.7. Salisbury NHS Foundation TrusSt.......ccoovviiiiiiiiiiieeeeeee, 24
5.8. The Wiltshire Care Partnership ......ceeeeeeviiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee 25
5.9. South West Ambulance Service Trust.......ccvvviiiieiiriiieee e 28
6. Local progress in relation to national requirements ........ccccceveecirreniriennnnnee. 29
7. Priorities for the current year 2013-14 .........ccovveeiiiiiirnniiininnnniinnnennnnieenes 30
APPENAICES ..cevvrriiirinniiiiiieniiiiiieniitiiesiisiieasiitiessssstiesssssstssnsssssssssssssssssnsssssss 32
Appendix 1 Business Plan 2013 - 15 .. .cuiiiiiiiiiieeeriiiiiee et e e e s sirnee e 32
Appendix 2 Board Membership and Attendance........cccecveeeiiiiiiieeiiniiiee e 50
Appendix 3 Management Information Report April 2012 — March 2013.............. 51
Appendix 4 Glossary of Terms and Definitions........cccevevviiieiiiniiiee e 61

Appendix 5 Case StudiesError! Bookmark not defined.Error! Bookmark not defined.57

Page 14



Foreword

| am pleased to present the Annual Report of the Wiltshire Safeguarding Adults Board
(WSAB) for 2012-13.

My theme last year was “development in a time of change”. Change has certainly
continued to be part of the context of the WSAB, and as the year under review ended we
welcomed new organisations to the WSAB: The Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG),
replacing the Primary Care Trust cluster and the NHS England area team.’ Changes have
also come through the creation of a more devolved structure at the Avon and Wiltshire
Partnership NHS Trust, from changes of personnel at some partner organisations and from
the Fire Service agreeing to join the Board.

What has particularly struck me in reviewing last year’s work has been that we have made
progress across the range of our responsibilities, from direct engagement with service
users through to ensuring our own work is well-structured and effective. We have
responded both to national change and to local needs, and this has been achieved in the
context of continuing heavy financial pressures on all partner agencies and complex
organisational change for many.

More detail can be found in the rest of the report but some highlights were:

¢ A successful workshop with nearly fifty service users to brief them about the role of the
WSAB and to find out how they want to have their voices strongly and consistently
heard in the Board’s work and in safeguarding activity more generally. This is leading,
in the first instance, to setting up a reference group of service users to inform the
Board’s work, with the potential to contribute in future to other aspects of
safeguarding work.

* Responding to national developments, in particular the various reports arising from the
events at Winterbourne View Hospital. All partners contributed to establishing a strong
action plan which has been integrated into our Business Plan for this year.

*» Making significant improvements, through the work of the Quality Assurance sub-
group, to the reports the Board receives about performance management and the
quality of services. This work will continue in the current year.

** Work has started on developing a communications strategy jointly with the Children’s
Safeguarding Board, but there is much more to do on this. The WSAB has, we hope,
raised its own visibility by adopting the logo that is on the front of this report.

Looking ahead, our Business Plan for the current year and beyond builds on the last year’s
work and is ambitious for the future of safeguarding despite the pressures on all
organisations. Our activities will include:

¢ Ensuring that the learning about safeguarding from the Winterbourne View Hospital
serious case review and related reports, and from the Mid-Staffordshire Inquiry is
comprehensively applied in Wiltshire.

! The team covers Gloucestershire, Swindon, Wiltshire and Bath & North East Somerset local authority areas.

Page 15



+» Develop the Service User reference group’s role and impact, and pursuing parallel work
to involve informal carers more fully in the work of the Board.

+» Taking forward the communications strategy and related work

¢+ Continue to develop our Quality Assurance system so that we can be confident that
good performance is recognised and problems are identified and addressed.

* Respond to the requirements of the Care Bill when it becomes law including ensuring
that our policies, procedures and training are all up to date to support staff in their
complex work.

Finally my thanks are due to all the members of the Wiltshire Safeguarding Adults Board
for their commitment and active involvement in the Board’s work, both as long-standing
and newer members, and also to those who participate in the sub-groups that are so
essential to our work. | am also grateful to the council’s officers who provide support to
the Board. | look forward to continuing to work with the Board through this year to ensure
that the many changes in and pressures on services do not reduce the wellbeing and
protection of all adults in Wiltshire.

Il Qotxv 1/ « Km\ '(Cfl‘ AQe

Independent Chair, Wiltshire Safeguarding Adults Board
July 2013

Page 16



1. Background

1.1. All persons have the right to live their lives free from violence or other sorts of
abuse, but in the 1980’s and 90’s a number of serious incidents came to light in
which vulnerable adults had not received the protection and support they needed
and had been subject to abuse. As a result, in 2000 the government published “No
Secrets”? which set out clear guidance for responsible agencies in local areas to
work in partnership to prevent abuse of vulnerable adults taking place and to deal
robustly with any incidents that did occur. Local authorities were given the
responsibility for co-ordinating this work and the arrangements now in place,
including the Safeguarding Adults Board, have developed from that guidance.

1.2. A vulnerable adult was defined as “a person aged 18 years or over who is or may be
in need of community care services by reason of mental or other disability, age or
illness; and who is or may be unable to take care of him or herself, or unable to
protect him or herself against significant harm or exploitation.” Over the years that
original focus has been broadened to include adults in vulnerable situations arising
from a whole range of causes and circumstances, with core safeguarding work
linked to a wider network of measures that enables “all citizens to live lives that are
free from violence, harassment, humiliation and degradation.”3

1.3. Most recent thinking is that it is preferable to refer to “adults at risk”. This reflects
the preference of people with disabilities that the emphasis should be on the
circumstances adults find themselves in, rather than on the individual’s disability,
which may or may not in itself make them “vulnerable”.

1.4.The Care Bill 2013 adopts the “adults at risk” terminology and brings forward, as
part of wider legislation to create a single modern legal framework for adult care
and support, proposals to put Safeguarding Adults Boards onto a statutory footing.
This has been a long-awaited development and is widely welcomed by all involved
in ensuring that all adults are able to live safely as citizens in their community.
Section 6 below refers to this and other recent policy developments in a little more
detail.

2. Governance and Accountability

2.1.The purpose of the Wiltshire Safeguarding Adults Board is to ensure that all
agencies work together to minimise the risk of abuse to vulnerable adults and to
protect vulnerable adults effectively when abuse has occurred or may have
occurred. Its Terms of Reference, which can be found in full in the Business Plan at
Appendix 1, include underpinning principles, remit, accountability and roles and
responsibilities. The WSAB meets quarterly and is supported by the work of three
main sub-groups and one that meets as necessary:
e Policy and Procedures (joint with Swindon SAB)

2 “No Secrets”; Department of Health and Home Office 2000

3 “Safeguarding Adults, A National Framework of Standards” ADSS 2005

Page 17



e Quality Assurance
e Learning and Development
e Serious Case Review (ad hoc)

Task and finish groups are used for specific time-limited tasks.

2.2.There have been several changes to the Safeguarding Board’s membership at the
end of the year under review, as the new NHS structures came into place, and
some new appointments took over in other organisations. The Terms of Reference
show that updated membership and the Board will be using its development
session in September 2013 to take stock of its own current capability as a team.

2.3.Board members are expected to attend at least two of the four meetings
themselves and to provide a consistent nominated substitute for any meetings they
cannot attend. This is to ensure continuity in the Board’s discussions and that
representation is at an appropriate organisational level. The attendance record for
2012-13 can be found at Appendix 2.

2.4.Statutory partner agencies all have arrangements for reporting on safeguarding
activity to their Board or equivalent. During the year the WSAB continued to agree
key messages at the end of each of its meetings for use by agency representatives
in briefings in their organisation, so as to ensure consistency of feedback on the
Board’s work.

2.5.The Board has had an Independent Chair since June 2010, and the Chair is

accountable to the Corporate Director who holds the statutory role of Director of

Adult Social Services. The main purpose of the role is:

e To provide independent leadership and strategic vision to the Wiltshire Local
Safeguarding Adults Board (WSAB)

e To chair the WSAB

e To ensure that Wiltshire’s SAB functions effectively and exercises its functions as
set out in No Secrets 2000 Guidance (and any subsequent government
guidance).

e To ensure the WSAB has an independent voice.

2.6. The WSAB has been accountable through the Corporate Director to the Cabinet
Wiltshire Council. However, the establishment of the Health and Wellbeing Board,
under the Health and Social Care Act 2012, now makes this the appropriate
reporting line for the Board. The Annual Report for 2011-12 was presented to the
Board in its shadow form, and this arrangement will continue now that it is in
substantive role. Further work will be needed on how the WSAB and the Health
and Wellbeing Board will work together on issues related to safeguarding.

2.7.The Board does not currently have an established budget or an agreement about
how the costs of its work will be shared among the partners. Discussions to move
this forward have started in the new business year.

Page 18



3. Summary of Activity during the Past Year

3.1

3.2.

3.3.

3.4.

3.5.

3.6.

The Board priorities for 2012-13 were set out in last year’s Annual Report, and
reflected the overall priorities of the WSAB and some key priorities of its partner
organisations. This section focuses on achievements against the WSAB priorities,
and any additional activity that had to be undertaken during the year. Individual
partners’ comments on their own progress can be found in section 5 below.

Compared to the previous year, progress during 2012-13 has been steadier, which
has been in part because key people have been more consistently available.
However, the arrival of the part-time Business Support Officer to the WSAB has
had a major positive impact on the organisation of the board’s work and therefore
its progress. She provides support both to the main Board and to the sub-groups
and task groups, ensuring meeting arrangements are well-organised, providing
notes promptly, progress-chasing and generally enabling a much more focussed
approach to the WSAB’s work. Sub-group and task group work is still sometimes
affected by attendance problems.

The Board has fulfilled its commitment to take local action in response to the
reports arising from the abuse at Winterbourne View Hospital. The September
meeting set up a task and finish group led by the Independent Chair to review the
large number of recommendations arising from the Serious Case Review” and
related reports, and propose a local action plan. An initial draft, pending the
publication of the Department of Health final report® was considered at the
December meeting, revised to take account of the DH report and, following
consultation in individual organisations, was adopted in its final form at the June
2013 meeting. The agreed actions have now been integrated into the Board’s
main Business Plan.

The development of the Care and Support Bill was monitored through the year,
but it did not reach a point where any action was required by the Board. Now
renamed the Care Bill, it has started its progress through parliament and
responding to its enactment is included in the 2013-15 Business Plan.

Substantial progress has been made to establish a quality assurance and
performance management system for the Board. The Quality Assurance sub-
group has used a model developed in the South West region as the basis for
creating more structured quarterly reports to the Board that cover a wider range
of information. Further detail about this can be found in section 4 below. This is
work in progress and will continue to be developed, and will need to adapt to
changing situations as they arise.

The WSAB Chair and Business Support Officer have been working with Wiltshire
and Swindon Users Network to develop a more structured and comprehensive

* Winterbourne View Hospital, A Serious Case Review; Margaret Flynn for South Gloucestershire Safeguarding Adults
Board, July 2012

> Transforming Care: A National Response to Winterbourne View Hospital; Department of Health, December 2012

Page 19



3.7.

3.8.

3.9.

approach to the involvement of service users in the work of the Board and
safeguarding system. This is needed in three different ways:

e Feedback from the experiences of service users who have been at the centre of
an investigation

e An effective and sustainable voice in the work of the Board
¢ Involvement in the development of policy, procedures and training

An initial open workshop session was held in November with the aim of giving
service users some information about the role of the WSAB, finding out their
views about safeguarding and related services and how service users can have a
strong voice in the Board’s work and in safeguarding activity more generally.
Forty seven service users from a wide range of backgrounds attended the
workshop, which was generally very positively received. There was lively
discussion and extensive comment which was fed back to the WSAB and work is
now progressing to set up a reference group. This is planned to meet quarterly
between the meetings of the Board to give views on forthcoming agenda items,
get feedback on items discussed at the previous Board meeting and identify key
issues that service users think need to be addressed.

Separate work is being done to ensure that service users are fully involved in
discussions about investigations of alleged abuse, either directly or through an
advocate where necessary. This will include hearing the outcomes they want
from the investigation and identifying at the end of the process whether these
have been achieved.

Work on the involvement of informal carers in the work of the Board and
safeguarding system has progressed only slowly after initial discussions were held
with Wiltshire Carers. This has been mainly because of their changes of personnel
and changing workload pressures. However, it is hoped that an introductory
workshop similar to that with service users will be arranged soon.

3.10. The development of a communications strategy jointly with the Children’s

3.11.

3.12.

Safeguarding Board is in its early stages. The intention is to support awareness
raising and good information sharing across all Wiltshire’s communities and to
update web-based information to support this. It has recently been identified
that this can be linked to related work being done by the Community Safety
Partnership.

The smooth transition of safeguarding work from the PCT to the Clinical
Commissioning Group has been assisted by some continuity of staff. The Board
will continue to monitor this as the new NHS structure settles down. The area
team of NHS England (Bath, Gloucestershire, Swindon and Wiltshire), which has
responsibility for supporting and providing assurance on safeguarding across all
NHS bodies in its area, is now represented on the Board alongside the Clinical
Commissioning Group and the provider trusts.

In addition to these priority activities the Board has, through its Policy and
Procedures sub-group, updated the joint policies and procedures it shares with

Page 20



Swindon Safeguarding Adults Board. Although further work will be needed once
the Care Bill is enacted and associated regulations issued, this updating was
essential to reflect changes in guidance, terminology and partner organisations
since the last revision in 2006.

3.13.The Board as a whole has continued to deliver its training strategy, and this is
reported in section 4 below. Individual partner reports confirm their own training
work through the year.

3.14. During the year the first Police and Crime Commissioners were elected and took
up their new roles. The Chairs of the children and adults safeguarding boards for
Swindon and Wiltshire had an initial meeting the Commissioner in January 2013
and these are intended to continue at six monthly intervals. The Commissioner
has to produce a Police and Crime Plan, and that for Wiltshire and Swindon has
“Protecting the most vulnerable in society” is one of its six priority areas.

4, Monitoring and Quality Assurance Activity
General performance reporting

4.1.There is a detailed set of performance data at Appendix 3 taken from the current
database. Some of the key issues that emerge from that data are:

e The number of alerts received in the past year has increased by nearly 50%.
There have been similar increases across the South West, but Wiltshire saw the
second highest rise across the region, with only North Somerset having a higher
percentage increase. This may be because Wiltshire’s system for recording has
changed; since May 2012 all referrals are triaged via SAMCAT. There is also
increased public awareness of safeguarding. The Board will continue to
monitor this pattern and seek to establish the reasons for it.

e Thisincrease in alerts has been reflected in an increased number reaching the
threshold for investigation. However, we need to check how this compares in
percentage terms as well.

e There has been a significant increase in the number of alerts coming from
residential care staff and CQC staff (Appendix 3, figure 4). Again, the reasons
for this need to be explored and the pattern monitored, but it is likely that at
least some of the increase is due to increased awareness of safeguarding in
those staff groups and the action that needs to be taken when concerns are
identified.

e Aswould be anticipated with the demography of Wiltshire, the overwhelming
majority of alerts relate to White British people. (Appendix 3, figure 6). There
may, however, be a need for further work in raising awareness in other ethnic
communities.

e There have been increases in alerts for all customer groups (Appendix 3, figure
7), apart from those with mental health needs. Over the past three years the
number of alerts involving people with learning disabilities has trebled, which is
likely to indicate raised awareness following the events at Winterbourne View
Hospital.

Page 21



e There has been an increase in the percentage of investigations where the
allegations of abuse were substantiated, from 40% in 2011/12 to 58% in
2012/13. (Appendix 3, Table 3).

4.2.As reported in 3.6 above, substantial progress has been made to establish a quality
assurance and performance management system for the Board, using a model
developed in the South West region. The model is shown in Figure 1 below.

Figure 1
The “Five-Layer” Model
Management
information Numbers

Numbers against a standard

Objective outcomes

Subjective outcomes

People’s

Individual stories lives

4.3.The idea is that different types of information are used to ensure that the Board
gets a balanced view of the service, both from the perspective of the organisation
and the person who receives the service. Starting from the top, layer 1 deals with
basic service inputs and outputs — what work came in and what was done with it.
Layer 2 goes a bit deeper, looking at why people needed a service and the different
ways that the service was provided.

4.4.layers 3 and 4 try to identify what the impact was both from the organisation’s
perspective (what we think happened as a result of the activity) and very
importantly from the service user’s perspective. We are working on improving and
extending the ways that service users can tell us what their experience was and
whether the service improved their situation in the way they wanted. Layer5
expands on all of the other layers by looking in more detail at some specific cases,
whether about individuals or institutions, and should help maintain the link
between the WSAB’s work and the front line.

4.5. Some specific performance issues to be added here. Including reference to service
improvement that is illustrated in the case study.

Risk register

4.6.The WSAB has continued to review its Risk Register at each meeting and amend it
as necessary to reflect changing pressures.

Monitoring regulated services

Page 22
10



4.7. Wiltshire council, NHS Wiltshire and CQC have worked closely, meeting on a bi
monthly basis to discuss inspection and review findings of regulated services and
triangulate this information received from reviews, safeguarding alerts and
complaints to the council and serious untoward incident reporting and complaints
to NHS Wiltshire and whistle-blowing to each agency. The meetings have proved
useful and helped the early identification of concerns to help prevent abuse from
occurring or potentially escalating.

Training programme

4.8.Training continues to be an important part of ensuring quality services. The full
programme of training organised on the Board’s behalf by Wiltshire Council is
based on the National Capability Framework®, which identifies the capabilities
required by all the different professional groups who have responsibilities for
safeguarding adults at risk of harm. These are identified in broad groups A to D and
range across:

e general staff who need basic understanding of the issues
e key front line professionals for whom safeguarding is a major part of their role

e  Strategic managers and leaders up to Chief Executives and including
safeguarding board chairs and members

4.9.The chart below give a breakdown of figures for safeguarding adults staff training
within the year which identifies how elements of the programme relate to the
groups in the national framework and meets the requirements for common
induction standards and multi-agency procedures roles.

COURSE TITLE TARGET GROUP COURSES ATTENDANCE
Social care induction New social care 3 programmes | 60
programme — Common workers in Wiltshire

Induction Standard 6. Council

Principles of safeguarding in
health and social care

Safeguarding awareness — e Any role in public 786
learning package; meets services in Wiltshire;

requirements of National also available to

Capability Framework for service users, carers

Safeguarding Adults (NCF) for | & volunteers
staff group A - responsibility to
contribute to safeguarding
adults

Staff group A (NCF) — Direct care staff in 11 courses 275

® National Capability Framework for Safeguarding Adults; Learn to Care and Bournemouth University 2012

Page 23
11



responsibility to contribute to
safeguarding adults

registered/regulated
services —
independent sector

Staff group A (NCF) - Direct care staff in 9 courses 162
responsibility to contribute to | registered/regulated
safeguarding adults services - council
Staff group B (NCF) — Managers and 5 courses 100
Considerable professional & senior workers in
organisational responsibility registered/regulated
for safeguarding adults services —
independent sector
& council
1 day course to get New Investigating 3 courses 35
Investigating Officers up and Officers
running in the role
3 day course covering adult Investigating 3 courses 33
protection legislation, Officers
procedures and processes
including Achieving Best
Evidence and report writing
Half day update & CPD session | Experienced 2 workshops 28
Investigating
Officers
1 day course to develop New Investigating 1 course 25
knowledge and skills in the Managers
Investigating Manager role
Half day update & CPD session | Investigating 4 workshops 80
Managers (also
attended by Police,
NHS & advocacy
service)
WSAB Development Half day WSAB members 1 session 14

session - Review of
developments in the past year;
creating a quality assurance
framework; user and carer
involvement; priorities, targets
and timescales — Business plan
2012 -15

4.10.The Learning and Development Team’s key plans for the current year are:

Page 24

12



e Build capacity in registered services by providing Train the Trainers courses for
managers/senior staff plus ongoing support and standardisation

e Continue to provide courses for staff group B and reduce the number of
courses for staff group A (see chart above) as in-house trainers in services will
meet their own training needs at that level.

e Review effectiveness of training and support for Investigating Officers,
including participation in a research project on training transfer with Plymouth
University

4.11.The Learning and Development sub-group’s priorities for the current year include
making sure that learning is really embedded in practice, and it will be drawing on
research by Research in Practice for Adults (RIPFA) to support this work. The sub-
group has started joint meetings with Swindon SAB Learning and Development
sub group twice a year, and these will continue.

Partner Reports

5.1. Wiltshire Council
Structure and approach to safeguarding

Maggie Rae, Corporate Director is the Safeguarding Lead for Adults. On a day to day
basis the Service Director for Adult Care and Housing and the Head of Specialist
Commissioning and Safeguarding Adults take the lead. There is also a lead Member for
Safeguarding who is a member of the Wiltshire Safeguarding Adults Board. Wiltshire
Council see the Safeguarding of vulnerable adults and children as one if its core
functions. Currently Wiltshire Council is the sole funder for the Safeguarding Adults
Board and its sub groups.

Wiltshire Council also wants to ensure that there are key links between Adults and
Children’s Safeguarding. The Service Director, Adult Care and Housing is a member of
both Boards. The Head of Specialist Commissioning & Safeguarding Adults is a member
of several sub groups of both Boards. The Chairs of the Safeguarding Adults Board,
Safeguarding Children’s Board, Children and Young Peoples Trust Board and
Community Safety Partnership meet on a 6 monthly basis.

Over the past year Wiltshire Council has increased investment in Safeguarding Adults.
The specialist Safeguarding Adults and Mental Capacity Act Team (SAMCAT), now have
a team manager, 2 Professional Leads, 4 Senior Social Workers, 4 minute takers and a
Business Support Officer. This emphasises Wiltshire Council’s commitment to
safeguarding the citizens of Wiltshire. Even when cuts have to be made in many areas
of public service, there is increasing investment in Safeguarding.

The triage function has continued to work effectively to ensure that the right response
is made to all alerts. Any referrals which are particularly sensitive or complex, and all
large scale investigations and whole home investigations are managed by SAMCAT. The
remainder of referrals are managed in locality teams with the support of SAMCAT. The
system ensures that patterns of abuse are picked up at an early stage.

Page 25
13



Achievements in 2012-13

The following have been notable achievements during this year:

Since the introduction of the triage system there has been an increase of
approximately 700 referrals from the previous year. However there has not been a
huge increase in referrals that have led to investigations. This indicates that the
threshold guidance is having an impact.

SAMCAT have also seen a very large increase in large scale and whole home
investigations. This has risen from 5in 2011/12 to 21 in 2012/13.

The commissioning of an audit of the Council’s Adult Safeguarding work, the results
of which have now led to an action plan and focus for some internal work.
Establishment of a system of case file audit and quality assurance in relation to
Safeguarding Adults.

Performance monitoring activity is shared throughout Adult Care Operations and
Commissioning on a weekly basis.

CAC reports are scrutinised and key findings fed back to Adult Care Operations and
Commissioning on a weekly basis.

Wiltshire Council meets with CQC on a bi-monthly basis to share knowledge and
intelligence over areas of concern in order to ensure there is intervention at as early
a stage as is possible and appropriate.

Workshops for Investigating Officers and Managers are held on a quarterly basis
and led by SAMCAT.

Safeguarding Adults staff training within the year

Staff in Wiltshire Council undertook a wide range of training in relation to safeguarding
adults.

60 new social care workers covered Common Induction Standard 6 - Principles of
safeguarding in health and social care during the social care induction programme
they attended

200 council staff completed an e learning module on safeguarding adults
awareness

162 staff in direct care and support roles completed training on safeguarding adults
in line with Group A requirements of the National Capability Framework for
Safeguarding Adults (NCF)

managers and senior staff in council services regulated by CQC completed training
in line with Group B requirements of the NCF

25 staff (mainly social workers and some occupational therapists) completed the 4
day of Investigating Officer training, including mental health social workers now
formerly managed by AWP and now managed directly in the council

25 managers, deputies and level 4 social workers completed one day of training in
the role of the Investigating Manager

This training was organised and run by the Adult Social care L&D Team, now (since
Summer 2013) part of HR & OD within the council.

Page 26
14



Regular half day update and CPD sessions were held by members of SAMCAT for both
Investigating Officers (2 sessions) and Investigating Managers (4 sessions). These were
well attended.

Key plans and objectives for safeguarding adults in the coming year

e Preparation for Peer Review which is taking place in November.
e Improve the quality of conference management by:
o Introduction of templates for minute taking
o Provide training for minute takers.
o Introduce set agendas for all conferences
o Provide training for Conference Chairs within the Investigating Manager
Workshops.
e Learn from key messages coming from quality audits and give regular feedback to
staff and improve practice.
e Learn from the Children’s Safeguarding MASH team in order to discuss with key
partners whether this model could be extended to Adults.
e Update information about Adult Safeguarding on Council website.
e Improve the tracking of alerts by devising system which will do this and report
results to WSAB.
e Be part of the regional work which is taking place in relation to Safeguarding Adults.
e Implement a new system of quality assurance within Commissioning ensuring this
links and works closely with Safeguarding Adults.
e Along with partners implement key recommendations of the Department of Health
recommendations arising from Winterbourne View.
e Further raise awareness with Council Members by participating in Members’
Induction programme.

5.2. Avon and Wiltshire Partnership Mental Health Trust

This was a year of significant change and development in the roles undertaken by AWP
to safeguard adults throughout 2012/13.

Achievements in 2012-13

AWP continued to play an active role in the Safeguarding Adults Board and its work.
AWP attended the Board on a regular basis and has chaired the group that has
completed the review the Wiltshire and Swindon Safeguarding Adults at Risk Policy and
Procedures. AWP also has a variety of staff involved in all the Board’s sub groups.

In May 2012, as part of the separation of health and social care services in mental
health within Wiltshire, AWP ceased to undertake management of safeguarding adult
alerts on behalf of Wiltshire Council, moving to an alerter role, in line with other
providers following this challenging period of change.

The Trust has continued to seek to improve its delivery of safeguarding in practice, with
revision of the policy and guidance to practitioners, better access to information for

Page 27
15



staff on the intranet and service users and the public on the Trust Website, and
significant updates to the training of practitioners.

AWP has also reviewed its services in light of the Winterbourne View Hospital reviews
and developed an action plan against the relevant recommendations. It is also
considered actions arising out of the recommendations from the Francis Report on
Mid-Staffordshire.

The Trust has maintained compliance with Outcome 7 (Safeguarding) of the CQC
Essential Standards in all CQC inspections of teams in Wiltshire during 2012/2013.

The Trust has continued to ensure that its staff is trained in their role to safeguard
adults, with the target of 80% of staff being trained on a 2 year cycle at Alerter level
(level 2) being maintained during 2012/2013.

Key plans and objectives for safeguarding adults in the coming year

AWP will be looking to use the current changes in its organisational structure to
improve the direct relationship between its local services and the safeguarding adult
partnership and Board in 2013/2014, and will be taking forward a number of key
actions, including:

e Developing systems capturing risks and concerns, to assist triangulation and identify
risks, and themes.

e Toimplement the Winterbourne View and Francis report action plans

e Demonstrate compliance with the safeguarding adult requirements set out in the
new NHS contract for 2013/2014

e Develop joint understanding of application of clinical management and
safeguarding thresholds with key partners in differing mental health inpatient

e The roll out and implementation of the changes within the revised multi agency
safeguarding procedures, particularly in relation to the active involvement of the
person in their own safeguarding.

5.3. NHS Wiltshire
Structure and approach

This is the final report for NHS Wiltshire Primary Care Trust and covers a period of
substantial change and transition.

The Primary Care Trust ceased to exist on the 31* March 2013 and responsibility for
commissioning healthcare transferred to Wiltshire Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG).
The CCG operated in shadow mode for the latter half of the year and the focus for the
PCT has been to ensure continuity of service and to support the CCG to achieve NHS
England Commissioning Board authorisation.

The Cluster arrangement with NHS B&NES continued through the year with the
Safeguarding Leads in B&NES and Wiltshire providing cover for annual leave and
support when necessary.

NHS Wiltshire Executive Lead for Safeguarding and representative on the Wiltshire
Safeguarding Adults Board was The Director of Nursing and Patient Safety. The Adult

Page 28
16



Safeguarding and Mental Capacity Act Lead deputised for the Director in her absence
and represented NHS Wiltshire on the LSAB Quality and Performance, Training and
Policy subgroups.

Activities during 2012-13
Quality Assurance was maintained by:

e Safeguarding Adults was a standing agenda item on the Clinical Governance and
Quality Committee. Quarterly reports to this committee detailed updates on
providers of concern, anonymised updates on safeguarding investigations involving
health funded service users and identified emerging concerns.

e The use of Quality Assurance visits during the year, one of which was a specific
safeguarding visit. These are a mix of announced and unannounced visits with a
focus on a number of key quality and patient safety issues, including adult
safeguarding.

e Safeguarding Adults activity is an agenda item at each quarterly Clinical Outcomes
and Quality Assurance meeting with providers.

e Provider concerns were raised at the quarterly meetings and safeguarding issues
requiring a more urgent response were addressed at an executive level through the
Director of Nursing or the Adult Safeguarding Lead.

All Serious Incidents Requiring Investigation (SIRI) reporting grade 3 and 4 pressure
ulcers are reviewed by the Adult Safeguarding Lead. The reviews highlighted a lack of
safeguarding scrutiny during the investigation process. These concerns have been
raised with the providers and we continue to work with providers to embed
safeguarding in the investigation process.

NHS Wiltshire’s participation in the Care Quality Monitoring Group continued with
representation from the Safeguarding Lead, Head of CHC and Head of Quality and
Performance. The Membership of this group comprises the Care Quality Commission,
NHS Wiltshire and local authority commissioners. The group’s objectives are:

e To monitor and identify emerging risks to quality standards and pro-actively address
these risks through a combined, coordinated response

e Toidentify any wider commissioning or strategic issues relating to the sustainability
of the care provider sector and ensure these are referred to the relevant
commissioning bodies.

It is anticipated that the Adult Safeguarding Schedule will be used for the 2013/14
contracts. This has been amended to incorporate the recommendations from various
national reports and the ADASS self-assessment audit so that the quality framework
has current Adult Safeguarding expectations in it. The CCG will have a statutory
responsibility to ensure that providers of commissioned services have adequate
safeguarding structures in place.

During 2012-13 NHS Wiltshire worked in partnership with Wiltshire Council’s
Safeguarding Adults and Mental Capacity Act Team (SAMCAT) on a number of large
scale investigations, supporting these investigations through scrutiny of care records

Page 29
17



and offering advice relating to health concerns. NHS Wiltshire also supported individual
alerts relating to healthcare issues.

NHS Wiltshire and Wiltshire Council have a joint action plan following a review of the
recommendations arising from the reports on Winterbourne View Hospital.

In response to the report of the Mid Staffordshire the PCT has requested all providers
to review the findings of the report and inform the PCT of subsequent actions within
their organisation. The Francis Report has the potential to significantly change the
effectiveness of commissioning for quality. CCGs have an opportunity to take a new
approach to quality assurance and improvement and to develop different relationships
with their local providers, in order to ensure that they are confident that fundamental
standards of care are being met.

Our complaints procedures have been reviewed including outcomes on as near a real-
time basis as possible. An anonymised summary of each upheld complaint relating to
patient care, in terms agreed with the complainant, should be published on its website
along with the trust’s response. Where the patient or complainant refuses, or for some
other reason publication is not possible, the summary should be shared confidentially
with the commissioner and the CQC.

In its capacity as a Supervisory Body for MCA Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards (2007)
NHS Wiltshire received 61 requests for standard authorisations between April 2012 and
March 2013; of these 24 were authorized (40%). Supervisory body responsibilities
transferred to the local authority with effect from 1°* April 2013. The CCG will remain
responsible for ensuring that commissioned services are compliant with the
Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards and for raising third party concerns where
appropriate.

Training sessions were run In the West Wiltshire, Yatton Keynell and Devizes (WWYKD)
area on Adult Safeguarding and Mental Capacity Act for General Practitioners and
Practice Managers to support their CQC registration.

During this year there has been a concerted effort to support CCG Authorisation. The
CCG Three year strategic Plan 2012-2015 encompasses the principles of adult
safeguarding throughout the document and there is a clear governance structure
including adult safeguarding as part of the Clinical Governance and Patient Safety
Committee. The Adult Safeguarding Commissioning Policy has been developed and
ratified. The policy incorporates key issues relating to national recommendations in
terms of roles and responsibilities. The shadow CCG board (Clinical Commissioning
Committee) received regular updates and reports relating to healthcare providers.

Key plans and objectives for safeguarding adults in the coming year

The protection of vulnerable adults is a core element of healthcare provision. The
following are objectives stated in the three year strategic plan. Training sessions for
commissioners will highlight the relevance of adult safeguarding to commissioning and
roles and responsibilities in accordance with local and national policy and legislation.

e The CCG’s governance framework will reflect a clear line of accountability for
safeguarding as recommended in ‘Arrangements to secure children’s and adult

Page 30
18



safeguarding in the future NHS, the new accountability and assurance framework —
interim advice’. NHS Commissioning Board 2012.

e The CCG will be an active partner in the Local Safeguarding Adults Board. Our
governance framework will include systems to monitor the quality of provision and
offer assurance that adult safeguarding concerns are identified and dealt with
robustly.

e The CCG will work proactively with service providers to commission high quality and
safe services for adults contractually under our care. The NHS contract
incorporating safeguarding standards will be used for services commissioned by the
CCG.

e The CCG will adopt a zero tolerance approach to adult abuse and will work to
ensure that its policies and practices are consistent with agreed local multiagency
procedures and compliant with the Mental Capacity Act 2005. In situations where
there is a duty to intervene, that intervention will be proportionate to the level of
risk.

5.4. Wiltshire Probation Trust
Structure and approach

The Director of Operations has responsibility for all safeguarding work and represents
Wiltshire Probation Trust on the Wiltshire Safeguarding Adults Board. There are two
middle managers who hold the operational responsibility to ensure that safeguarding
policies and practice standards are cascaded to all staff in the organisation. Middle
managers and practitioners are also represented on all the sub-groups to ensure that
the Trust is kept up to date with all safeguarding research and initiatives.

Wiltshire Probation Trust is committed to providing effective and individualised support
to all vulnerable adults who come in contact with the Trust. This includes service
delivery both to offenders and their families as well as adult victims of crime. Wiltshire
Probation Trust considers a close working relationship with the LSAB is crucial to
ensuring community confidence in the work carried out by the Trust and its partners.

The Trust works to ensure that offenders receive equal access to services that will
address their offending behaviour in the most effective manner. We also give support
to the families of offenders, who may also be vulnerable adults. This combination of
support has been facilitated by the Trust working closely with both Multi-Agency Public
Protection Arrangements (MAPPA) and partners from the LSAB. The Trust also has a
responsibility in liaising with all victims of serious crime in cases where an offender
received a prison sentence of at least 12 months. For those victims who are vulnerable
adults, the Trust’s Victim Liaison Officers may be the first agency that meet with them
and can then direct these individuals towards appropriate advice and support.

We ensure that all staff who have contact with offenders attend the safeguarding
training events and the training plan is annually reviewed to ensure that staff also
attend refresher training. There is regular monitoring and auditing of cases which is
undertaken by middle managers and safeguarding also forms part of the supervision
process with offender managers.

Page 31
19



The Trust has recently reviewed its representation and membership of Boards and sub-
groups to ensure focused and appropriate representation and prioritisation of
safeguarding work.

Key plans & objectives for safeguarding adults in the coming year

Wiltshire Probation Trust will continue to prioritise its safeguarding work in partnership
with other agencies. In particular we will:

e Ensure that staff have access to sufficient training to enable them to maintain the
necessary skills in working with vulnerable adults and their families.

e Continue to prioritise our work in domestic abuse in terms of the perpetrator
domestic abuse programmes that we provide to offenders as part of a sentence of
the court as well as to perpetrators that are referred to us from Cafcass.

o Continue to support the partners of domestic abuse perpetrators through the work
of the Women’s Safety Worker.

e Actively contribute to Domestic Homicide Reviews and subsequent action plans.

5.5. Wiltshire Police
Structure and approach

The Wiltshire Police Safeguarding Adult Investigation Team consists of specially trained
investigators. The team comprises a Detective Sergeant, 7 investigators and an
administrator. The strategic lead for Safeguarding Adults is the Detective
Superintendent of the Public Protection Department, Detective Superintendent
Dawson and he attends the Board. Detective Inspector Pete Chamberlain, has the
operational lead for Safeguarding Adults and attends the Quality Assurance sub-group.

Achievements during 2012-13

During 2012, Wiltshire Police introduced the ‘Three Strands of Vulnerability’. The three
strands relate to welfare, vulnerable people and safeguarding adults. The process map
which was devised gave officers direction and guidance on what action they needed to
take, dependent upon the circumstances they were dealing with. The benefit of this for
the Safeguarding Adults Investigation Team is that they receive fewer referrals which
do not need to be reviewed and can focus on the referrals which require their skills and
knowledge to investigate. Since the introduction of the ‘Three Strands’ the number of
referrals involving welfare concerns of vulnerable adults is reducing as officers are
referring directly to Swindon Careline or Wiltshire customer advisors. We plan to
reinforce the ‘Three Strands’ message within Wiltshire Police by carrying out regular
briefings to neighbourhood policing teams, response officers and CID officers

Staff from the safeguarding team are also giving presentations to Nursing Homes to
improve the reporting of abuse and to make sure that evidence of any abuse is properly
recorded. Recently a presentation was given to a nursing home and as a result of the
training given, we saw a marked increase in referrals from this nursing home as staff
there understood fully what their responsibilities were regarding the reporting of
vulnerable adult abuse

Page 32
20



Wiltshire Police is currently reviewing the training package for training officers to tackle
vulnerable adult abuse.

Financial abuse accounts for approximately 30 per cent of the referrals to the
Safeguarding Adults Team. These cases are often complex in nature and involve dealing
with fluctuating capacity, powers of attorney and applications for production orders.
The Safeguarding Adults Department is now referring the majority of their financial
abuse investigations to the Wiltshire Police Complex Fraud Unit. The Complex Fraud
Team has excellent expertise to tackle complex fraud and securing the evidence in an
effective and efficient manner. The safeguarding team will continue to manage the
safeguarding aspect of the vulnerable adults in relation to financial abuse. The
Safeguarding Team will also continue to manage the excellent working relationship we
have with the Wiltshire Court of Protection team which is very proactive in its work to
protect the finances of vulnerable adults. We currently have two major financial abuse
cases which are with the Courts

Officers in the Public Protection Department are well into becoming omni-competent
with regards to Safeguarding Adult cases. Officers from the Domestic Violence
Investigation Team have led a number of safeguarding adult investigations which have
involved domestic abuse.

Key plans and objectives for safeguarding adults in the coming year

In line with the policy and procedures for Safeguarding Vulnerable Adults in Swindon
and Wiltshire, Wiltshire Police will:

e actively work together within the agreed inter-agency framework based on the
guidance contained in ‘No Secrets’ (2000 Department of Health, Home Office)

e actively work together within the agreed procedures, guidance and protocols
underpinning this framework to investigate abuse and manage protection;

e actively promote the empowerment and well-being of vulnerable adults through
the services we provide;

e actively support the rights of the individual to lead an independent life based on self
determination and personal choice;

e recognise people who are unable to take their own decisions and/or protect
themselves, their assets and their bodily integrity;

e recognise that the right to self determination can involve risk and ensure such risk is
recognised and understood by all concerned, and minimised whenever possible;

e ensure the safety of vulnerable adults by integrating strategies, policies and services
relevant to abuse within all systems and legislation created to safeguard adults

e ensure that when the right to an independent lifestyle and choice is at risk, the
individual concerned receives appropriate advocacy including advice, protection
and support from relevant agencies;

e ensure that the law and statutory requirements are known and used appropriately
so that vulnerable adults receive the protection of the law and access to the judicial
process;

e identify others who may be at risk of harm, including children, and effect immediate
referral to the appropriate authority;

Page 33
21



e recognise the on-going duty of care to service users who perpetrate abuse and
facilitate any necessary action to address abusive behaviour;

e actively promote an organisational culture within which all those who express
concern will be treated seriously and will receive a positive response from
management;

e ensure rigorous recruitment practices deter those who actively seek vulnerable
people to exploit or abuse;

e ensure that all agencies working with vulnerable adults are familiar with this policy
and the agreed procedures, guidance and protocols;

e ensure that confidentiality and information sharing related to protection of
vulnerable adults and perpetrators of abuse in a multi-agency context are
maintained with the agreed protocols; and

e ensure that all staff responsible for managing and conducting investigations within
these procedures receive the appropriate training and support.

The aim of all staff within the Safeguarding Adults Investigation Team within the Public
Protection Department throughout this year will be:

e To prevent harm or further harm to both adult and child vulnerable victims.

e To bring the perpetrators of these crimes to justice.

e Prevent where possible, perpetrators from re-offending.

e To ensure that all staff are appropriately trained and accredited to recognise and
respond to Adult and Child safeguarding issues

e To strive to continuously improve systems, processes and people to provide a high
quality service to the community and maintain and enhance the reputation of the
Service.

5.6. Royal United Hospital, Bath
Structure and approach

The Royal United Hospital Safeguarding Adults group has been established for 7 years
and consists of the following group members:

e Executive Lead, Director of Nursing

e Operational Lead, Matron for Critical Care Services

e Medical Lead, Consultant Geriatrician

e Sister for Quality Improvement for Mental Health & Learning Disability
e Senior Nurse for Quality Improvement & Adults at Risk

e Lead for Quality Assurance

e Head of Clinical Skills

The Executive Lead attends the Local Safeguarding Adults Board meetings. As per
agreement at LSAB level, there is RUH representation from one of the Trusts
Operational Leads at the Quality Assurance Sub group, with the other sub groups being
represented by other acute Trust representation.

Over the past 4 years there has been a consistent rise in the number of alerts made to
the Operational safeguarding leads.

Page 34
22



Safeguarding Adult Alert Numbers
300
250 —
200 —
150 —
100 —
) Il _
BANES Somerset Wiltshire South Glos Other Unknown Total
m2009-10 30 5 47 0 0 0 91
m2010-11 50 14 63 0 0 0 127
2011-12 52 15 56 0 2 9 134
2012-13 105 43 115 5 5 2 275

Achievements 2012-13

Awareness of adult abuse and protection continues to increase across the
organisation.

Successfully run “Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards” (DoLS) workshops for senior
staff.

Compliant with training targets for the delivery of Adult safeguarding Level 1
Development and delivery of Adult Safeguarding “refresher” training at Level 2
Half day induction training for all registered staff aligned to BANES /Sirona training
matrix level 2

Following CQC inspection in September 2012, the RUH is compliant with outcome 7.
Positive outcome from the South West Partnership Dementia Peer Review in
January 2012. The Trust was highly commended for being Dementia friendly.

CRB checks compliance is 100% for all new staff.

Root cause analysis undertaken on 100% of the most serious pressure ulcers at
grade 3 and 4.

Further development and growth of the existing Safeguarding “database”
Establishment of a DoLS “database”.

Development of and work against the Safeguarding Adults Work plan for 2012-13.
This was written in alignment with the Self-Assessment Quality & Performance
Framework for Adult Safeguarding, CQC essential standards for quality and safety,
Training Matrix - BANES LSAB and RUH

Training

Subject % compliance All staff or selected

Page 35
23



Safeguarding Adults 83.7% All Staff
RUH level 1

Safeguarding Adults

0, —
RUH level 2 33.1% Clinical staff

Adult safeguarding training at Level 2 for clinical staff has been offered since April
2012. A training implementation plan has been developed, with an internal trajectory
for improvement towards target compliance of 85%. This trajectory is agreed and
monitored by the commissioners also.

Key plans and objectives for safeguarding adults in the coming year

e To meet our training objectives for levels 2 and 3 as per our internal trajectory.

e Improved utilisation and interrogation of the safeguarding adults and Dols “data
bases”, which will report into the Trust’s Safeguarding Adults Forum.

e Randomised case note review to be undertaken quarterly and reported into Trusts
Safeguarding Adults Forum

e Update Safeguarding Adults work plan for 2013-14 and work towards completing
these objectives

e Full time named nurse for Adult Safeguarding (new appointment) to establish work
programme

5.7. Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust
Structure and approach

Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust continues being an active member of the WSAB,
supporting the multi-agency process to ensure Vulnerable Adults are safe from harm
and abuse in Wiltshire.

Tracey Nutter, Director of Nursing is the Executive Lead for Children and Adult
Safeguarding. Fiona Hyett, new Deputy Director of Nursing from September 2012, has
replaced Lorna Wilkinson. Fiona has operational responsibility for Safeguarding Adults
and sits on the WSAB. Gill Cobham, is Adult Safeguarding and MCA Lead and has
responsibility for supporting staff through the safeguarding process, increasing
awareness and multiagency liaison. Gill Cobham is a member of the Policy, Practice and
Procedures Sub- Group. Assurance to the Trust Board is via reporting to the Clinical Risk
Group and Clinical Governance Committee.

Awareness of Adult abuse and protection continues to increase across the organisation.
There is strong multi-agency working between the Hospital, Social Care and the Police.
We have an active Learning Disability Working Group with representation from NHS
Wiltshire’s Community Team for People with Learning Disabilities, Trust staff, Carers,
and South Wilts Mencap. The Learning Disability Work Group has an annual work plan.

The Adult Safeguarding Lead Nurse and Named Nurse for Safeguarding Children
continue to work closely and represent the Trust on Wiltshire’s MARAC. Awareness
raising around domestic abuse within the organisation continues.

Achievements during 2012-13

Page 36
24



68 Safeguarding alerts were raised by the Trust, 16 Urgent DolLS authorized and a total
17 patients referred to the IMCA service from the Hospital and Social Care (SWAN
cannot currently break this data down by county, so some may be for patients who live
outside Wiltshire).

The organisation continues to make progress with the SW Adult Safeguarding Quality
and Performance Framework action plan, Learning Disability work plan and Dementia
Strategy. A further Dementia Peer review was completed in February 2013; the
feedback was very positive.

CQC completed their unannounced scheduled inspection of the organisation in
February 2013. All essential standards of quality and safety were met with the
exception of staffing and medical records. CQC were concerned that the organisation
‘did not have sufficient, experienced, qualified and skilled staff to meet people’s needs
effectively at all times’ and that ‘paper based confidential patient information was not
protected effectively on some wards’. These were judged as having a minor impact on
patients and an action plan had to be submitted to CQC by April 5% 2013.

Training

327 staff completed Safeguarding awareness training at Induction this year (includes
Adult and Child Protection and Domestic Abuse). 80% of Trust staff have completed the
Safeguarding e-learning package, and 78% the MCA e-learning package. This year a
further 60 registered staff have completed in depth MCA training (includes DoLS)
provided by an outside trainer

Key plans and objectives for safeguarding adults in the coming year

e Continue to embed work in relation to Learning Disabilities, Dementia and Domestic
Abuse

e Safeguarding/ MCA/ LD training strategy and provision of ‘in-house’ training

e Safeguarding Committee, as part of the reporting/ governance structure in the Trust

5.8. Great Western Hospital
Structure and approach

The Chief Nurse is the Executive Lead for Safeguarding. There is also a Non-Executive
Lead for Safeguarding. Both roles are to assure the Trust Board of the adequacy of the
systems and processes which are in place (or which are required) to support effective
safeguarding measures across the organisation.

The Deputy Chief Nurse is the Operational Lead for Safeguarding Adults at risk and also
Chairs the Trust Safeguarding Children and Adults Forum, providing strong leadership
that supports Directorates to make safeguarding integral to care. The Deputy Chief
Nurse represents the Trust on the LSAB. The Trust has representation on the Learning
and Development Sub-group.

The Trust Safeguarding Children and Adults Forum is a multi-professional group that
provides assurance to Patient Safety and Quality Committee (Sub-Group of the Trust
Board) that the Trust is protecting children and adults at risk, are following multi-
agency procedures, and meet identified national and local standards.

Page 37
25



Achievements in 2012-13

A review conducted by the Internal Audit Services in October 2012 as part of the
planned Trust programme, identified a number of weaknesses in assurance. Further, a
self-assessment using an assurance framework published by the Department of Health
in March 2011 has been conducted to review the robustness of the Trust’s current
arrangements for Adult Safeguarding. The key findings are summarised below:

Strategy & planning

The Trust has a number of good examples of planning to improve areas of work that
impact for vulnerable adults including the Falls Prevention Strategy, Dementia Strategy
Group and Learning Disability Forum work-plan. The Trust Safeguarding Forum terms
of reference and agenda was reviewed and updated to ensure there is an appropriate
balance of strategic and operational focus, and to be tasked with developing a strategic
plan.

Systems & processes

A Trust policy for ‘Safeguarding Adults at Risk’ is available and aligns to the multi-
agency policy and procedures developed jointly by Swindon and Wiltshire Local
Safeguarding Adults Boards (LSABs). At the time of the audit, the policy was out of date
and its contents were not sufficiently comprehensive. A review and update of the policy
was conducted in line with the multi-agency policy and has been ratified through the
Trust policy and procedure group.

The audit recognised that the Governance arrangements for Adult Safeguarding
required further improvement. The current governance processes were not in place to
capture referrals and monitor outcomes from investigation reports. At the time of the
audit, systems to regularly and routinely report safeguarding activity and performance
was not established. As of February 2013 new systems and processes were introduced
that include the logging of all safeguarding referral on the Trust Clinical Incident
reporting system.

The Trust Safeguarding Forum has worked with Governance colleagues to design and
implement robust systems and processes, ensuring they align with LSAB requirements.

Workforce, culture & capability

An Adult Safeguarding Facilitator’s post was developed to support and drive existing
work for adult safeguarding. Resources are available for a limited period only and
evaluation of the impact of the role will be required to ascertain whether a permanent
role is required. In addition, funding has been agreed to provide an administrative
function to support Adult Safeguarding, including mental health, dementia and learning
disabilities.

Partnerships and collaborative working

The Trust is represented at LSABs for Swindon and Wiltshire by the Deputy Chief Nurse,
who attends appropriately and is well engaged with the wider agenda. The Trust is
able to provide service information as required by the LSAB or commissioners.

Page 38
26



In addition, the Trust works closely with our mental health providers AWP to provide an
efficient and effective service that meet the service needs.

Staff training

The Trust has a responsibility to ensure that sufficient education and training is
available and accessible for staff. Training is aligned to service and changing care needs
to ensure that people are cared for by staff that are properly inducted, trained and
qualified, who have the required knowledge and skills to do the jobs the service needs,
whilst working effectively in a team. The audit mentioned above also identified that
many staff, despite accessing the mandatory training, lacked confidence in fulfilling
their role in Safeguarding. Additionally work to review the content of the training such
that it has maximum impact on practice and staff knowledge is in development with
the Trust academy and Local Safeguarding Leads.

Training will deliver a competent and capable workforce that will:

e Be able to explain the concepts of protection and vulnerability.
e Recognise the type of abuse and their related sign.

e Understand how to report concerns including whistle blowing.
e Take personal action to safeguarding adults in their care

Safeguarding adults training is established as mandatory for all staff groups across the
organisation and compliance has improved over the past 6 months with a Trust figure
of 82.2% as of March 2013.

Key plans and objectives for safeguarding adults in the coming year

To continue to review and further develop the Trust internal reporting systems and
evidence learning from relevant safeguarding cases

To review and further develop education and training and evidence that such
training is having positive outcome

To continue to raise the profile of safeguarding through the new Integrated
Safeguarding annual forum and ‘Big Conversation” month planned for June 2013
Work is also needed to determine what training or development members of the
Trust Board should receive such that they have an understanding of the
requirements of the Trust and can discharge their duties in relation to Safeguarding
Vulnerable Adults.

To have supervision available and accessible for staff involved in Safeguarding
Adults procedures and processes.

To further strengthen the work of the Trust Safeguarding Children and Adult Forum
through the operational sub-groups and the development of an overarching
Safeguarding Adults Action Plan outlining local and national priorities and actions

To perform an annual self assessment on the Trust position around safeguarding
adults — December 2013

5.9. The Wiltshire Care Partnership

Structure and approach

Page 39
27



The Wiltshire Care Partnership has been established as a joint initiative between
commissioners and independent providers of care for older people. It is a member-led
organisation which represents and supports care providers and works alongside
commissioners to ensure the provision of high quality, safe services to older people in
the county now and in the future.

Achievements during 2012-13

Although still in its first year, the Wiltshire Care Partnership has been able to recruit
over 50% of independent care homes for older people making it the largest single
representative body for independent care providers ever established in the county. It is
funded through its members with support from Wiltshire Council.

Key plans and objectives for safeguarding adults in the coming year

As the Wiltshire Care Partnership progresses it is developing a range of services for its
members which will support sustainability of their businesses. It will provide mentoring
and advice to providers in order to make the best use of experience and promote best
practice. The Partnership offers a valuable opportunity for commissioners and
providers of care to work together to jointly address the challenges of meeting the
needs of older people. Sharing intelligence, ideas and expertise will allow effective use
to be made of resources across the whole system in order to achieve the best
outcomes for older people.

The Wiltshire Care Partnership’s agreed absolute priority is to support and lead all
service providers in driving the delivery of quality safe care underpinned by the ‘My
Home Life’ principals and standards.

5.10. South West Ambulance Service Trust

This report is extracted from the Trusts annual report to the Trust’s Quality Governance
Committee.

Structure and approach

The Executive Nurse Director is the Executive Director accountable for safeguarding of
vulnerable groups including children. This enables SWASFT to fulfil its functions in
partnership with others and secure effective operation of LSCB functions and ensuring
that the organisation is effectively engaged.

In addition, the Safeguarding Manager provides a safeguarding report to the Quality
Governance Committee in order to provide safeguarding activity information to this
group, detailing progress against SCR action plans, legislation and trust safeguarding
activity.

Achievements during 2012-13
e The Safeguarding Service workforce has increased to include a full time Manager
successfully recruited and commenced on 2 January 2013.

e There are 2 Named Professionals who are dedicated to safeguarding as part of the
acquisition.

Page 40
28



e Recruitment is in progress to recruit an additional band 3 position to support the
existing band 3 administration assistant.

e The ‘memorandum of understanding’ was agreed with all 28 Boards

e The governance framework reporting system has been strengthened by the
Safeguarding Manager attending the Quality Governance Committee.

e Despite the challenges of the limited workforce at some points in the year, all SCR
information was relayed as appropriate.

e The safeguarding referral system is more sophisticated to produce quality data.

e A successful Care Quality Commission inspection was undertaken on safeguarding in
Jan 13.

e Atraining Strategy has been agreed

e The Allegations Policy has been agreed.

Key plans and objectives for safeguarding adults in the coming year

The priorities for the Safeguarding Service were decided at the whole team meeting in
March 2013. These are:

e Ensuring the delivery of the Integrated Training

e Ensuring the running of a successful Safeguarding Operational Group
e Ensuring the appropriateness and quality of safeguarding referrals.

e Work plan to be guided by the South West Audit

5.11. Wiltshire Fire and Rescue Service

The Fire and Rescue Service is just joining the Board in 2013, but it is useful to outline
its role in relation to safeguarding. The Service’s contact with those who are vulnerable
is usually low risk in terms of abuse and neglect, but these are the very people who will,
if not supported, become high risk.

The Service is currently reviewing its policies and procedure for safeguarding children
and adults and will deliver bespoke awareness training to all staff during the next
financial year. Senior Managers and specialist roles will get enhanced safeguarding
training commensurate to their role.

A case study of the kind of links that exist between the service and safeguarding activity
can be found at Appendix 5.

Local progress in relation to national requirements

6.1.2012-13 was a year when many substantial national reports and other publications
appeared with relevance to Safeguarding work, which the Board has noted and
responded to as appropriate. Between June and August 2012 the following were
published:

e  Care Quality Commission (June 2012) Learning Disability Services National
Overview

e DH (June 2012) Department of Health Review: Winterbourne View Hospital
(Interim Report)

e  HM Government (July 2012) Caring for our future: reforming care and support

Page 41
29



6.2.

6.3.

6.4.

South Gloucestershire Safeguarding Adults Board (August 2012) Winterbourne
View Hospital, A Serious Case Review

HM Government (July 2012) Draft Care and Support Bill

DH (July 2012) Consultation on New Safeguarding Power

NHS South of England (August 2012) Report of the NHS Review of
commissioning of care and treatment at Winterbourne View

Most of these arose from the abuse that occurred at Winterbourne View Hospital,
and the Board’s response to this is outlined in paragraph 3.3 above, and partner
reports also refer to their own actions. Following consultation, the Care and
Support Bill was renamed the Care Bill and has started its progress through
parliament. It brings safeguarding adults work into a legal framework for the first
time and requires each local authority to establish a Safeguarding Adults Board. It
also makes provision for Safeguarding Adults Reviews to be carried out when it
appears that neglect or abuse has contributed to the serious injury or death of an
adult.

In December 2012 the Association of Directors of Adult Social Services (ADASS)
published national guidance on Out of Area Safeguarding Arrangements, which
the WSAB has adopted. This creates a consistent approach to communication and
responsibilities for safeguarding where people are living in an area other than that
of the local authority or NHS organisation which is responsible for their care and
support.

Other publications in the latter half of the year and early in the new financial year
included:

DH (February 2013), Report of the Mid-Staffordshire NHS Foundation Trust
Public Inquiry and Executive Summary,

ADASS (March 2013), Safeguarding Adults: Advice and Guidance to Directors of
Adult Social Services

NHS England (March 2013), Safeguarding Vulnerable People in the Reformed
NHS, Accountability and Assurance Framework

DH (May 2013), Statement of Government Policy on Adult Safeguarding
(Updated from the May 2011 statement

Local Government Association, ADASS and Social Care Institute for Excellence
(SCIE) (May 2013), Making Safeguarding Personal

6.5. The WSAB has had initial discussions about the Mid-Staffordshire report, has noted

the ADASS, NHS England and DH publications, and will need to address Making
Safeguarding Personal in the coming months.

7. Priorities for the year 2013-14

These priorities reflect national developments and local objectives. The Board’s Business
Plan integrates these priorities with other existing work and sets out timescales for
implementation. During the year, the Board will also receive feedback from the four
Domestic Homicide Reviews that are underway in the county, led by the Community Safety
Partnership, and this may identify further priority activities for the WSAB.

Page 42
30



Overall Priorities

* Implement agreed actions arising from the Winterbourne View and Mid-Staffordshire
reports

+» Establish the service user reference group and, in partnership with its members,
develop its contribution to the work of the Board and safeguarding system.

+* Continue work to develop a more structured approach to the involvement of informal
carers in the work of the Board and safeguarding system

+* Continue to develop a communications strategy jointly with the Children’s Safeguarding
Board to support awareness raising and good information sharing across all Wiltshire’s
communities, linking with the Community Safety Partnership where relevant. Update
web-based information to support the strategy.

* Carry out the agreed Serious Case Review to a high standard.

» Develop further the new quality assurance reporting structure.

» Contribute to the Peer Review commissioned by Wiltshire Council

** Respond to the passage of the Care Bill and related regulations and guidance when
issued, preparing the Board to move onto a statutory footing.

Partner Priorities

In addition to supporting the delivery of the Board’s overall priorities, partner agencies will
be working on their organisational safeguarding priorities. Where priorities are stated in
the reports in section 5, their specific activities and concerns also show some common
themes:

¢ Arange of training, mentoring and development work

K/

¢+ Actions to consolidate or improve management and governance arrangements

-,

+ Further development of the use of data, audit and case review

+* Quality assurance across different aspects of partners’ responsibilities

Page 43
31



Appendices Appendix 1

Business Plan 2013-15 (including WSAB Terms of Reference)

A. Aims & Objectives of the SAB:

These are set out in the Terms of Reference, along with the membership of the Board and
the means by which it intends to achieve its aims.

WILTSHIRE SAFEGUARDING ADULTS BOARD — TERMS OF REFERENCE
1. Statement of Purpose

The purpose of the Wiltshire Safeguarding Adults Board (WSAB) is to ensure that all
agencies work together to minimise the risk of abuse to adults at risk of harm and to
protect and empower vulnerable adults effectively when abuse has occurred or may have
occurred. The WSAB aims to fulfil its purpose by:

e Maintaining and developing inter-agency frameworks for safeguarding adults in
Wiltshire, including determining policy, facilitating joint training and raising public
awareness.

e Co-ordinating the safeguarding adults work undertaken by those organisations
represented on the WSAB and monitoring and reviewing the quality of services relating
to safeguarding adults in Wiltshire.

In doing this the Board will follow all relevant legislation and guidance’.
2. Underpinning Principles

The Board will achieve its role by implementing the national principles of adult
safeguarding®, which are:

Empowerment — Presumption of person-led decisions and informed
consent

Protection — Support and representation for those in greatest need

Prevention — It is better to take action before harm occurs.

Proportionality —  Proportionate and least intrusive response appropriate

to the risk presented

Partnership — Local solutions through services working with their
communities. Communities have a part to play in
preventing, detecting and reporting neglect and abuse.

Accountability — Accountability and transparency in delivering
safeguarding.

7 Alist of current guidance at the time of this revision is at Appendix 1

® Statement of Government Policy on Adult Safeguarding; DH, May 2011.

Page 44
32



In addition, the WSAB:

e Supports the rights of all adults to equality of opportunity, to retain their
independence, wellbeing and choice and to be able to live their lives free from abuse,
neglect and discrimination.

e Values diversity and will seek to promote equal access and equal opportunities
irrespective of race, culture, sex, sexual orientation, disability, age, religion or belief,
marriage/ civil partnership and pregnancy /maternity.

3. Policy Statement

The WSAB will act within the framework of the law, statutory guidance and government
advice. The prime consideration of the WSAB will be to oversee multi-agency
responsibilities in line with the requirements of “No Secrets: guidance on developing and
implementing multi-agency policy and procedures to protect vulnerable adults from
above” (DH/ Home Office, 2000) and current national policy, national and regional
guidance and best practice.

4. Membership and Chair

The membership of the WSAB consists of senior representatives from key organisations in
Wiltshire, who must be of sufficient seniority and authority to speak on behalf of their
organisation and commit resources or directly feed into decision-making that can commit
resources as appropriate. Representatives of wider groups (independent providers,
service users and carers) must have access to appropriate networks to communicate
information to and from the Board.

Wiltshire Council e Cabinet Member

e Corporate Director

e Service Director Adult Care Commissioning

e Head Specialist Commissioning, and Safeguarding

Clinical Commissioning Group e Director of Quality and Patient Safety
Avon and Wiltshire Mental e Head of Public Protection and Safeguarding
Health Partnership NHS Trust
Wiltshire Police e Superintendent with responsibility for Public
Protection
Salisbury Hospital NHS e Deputy Director of Nursing
Foundation Trust
Royal United Hospital Bath e Director of Nursing Services
Great Western Hospital e Deputy Chief Nurse
Foundation NHS Trust
NHS Community Services e Via GWH Representative
Page 45

33




Residential and nursing care e Asnominated
provider representative

Domiciliary Care provider e As nominated
representative

Great Western Ambulance e (linical Standards Manager
Service

Probation Service e Director of Operations
Carer Representation e Under development
Service User Representation e Under development

Community Safety Partnership e Public Protection Manager, Wiltshire Council

Arrangements are being made for the views of service users and carers to be effectively
represented in the Board’s work, either by direct membership of the board and its sub-
groups or by reference group or similar arrangements.

The Compliance Manager from the Care Quality Commission attends annually.

The Board is linked to the Local Safeguarding Children Board by the Head of
Commissioning membership of that board and a representative from the LSCB is being
sought for the SAB.

Other organisational representatives or specialist leads may be invited for reports of
specific interest to them.

Chair

The Chair of the Partnership is an independent person appointed for a three year term
through procurement by Wiltshire Council.

The Deputy Chair is appointed by the Board from nominations from Board members

5. Meetings and Structure

The WSAB will meet not less than four times a year, with additional meetings as necessary.
It will set time aside each year for a half day workshop to review its achievements, assess
performance and effectiveness and consider future priorities.

e The quorum for meetings is that there should be at least three members present from
three different agencies. OR will be one third of the usual membership providing the
Council, one of the health partners and one other partner organisation is represented.

e Lack of attendance will hinder the strategic development of the inter-agency
arrangements for safeguarding adults. For this reason Board members are expected to
attend two out of the four main meetings; substitutions are permissible, but should be
by named, regular substitutes. A register of attendance is kept and will form part of the
Annual Report.

Page 46
34




Sub-groups

The Board has three standing sub-groups which are responsible to the Board and take
forward the Business Plan priorities:

e Policy and Procedures (joint with Swindon SAB)
e Learning and Development

e (Quality Assurance

Task Groups

The Board may establish task and finish groups for specific, time-limited work.

6. Remit
The WSAB will be accountable for the following:

e Leading the development, approval, monitoring and review of multi-agency
safeguarding policies, procedures and practice, including information sharing, and
ensuring that they reflect the needs of all communities in Wiltshire, and the needs of all
members of those communities

e Promoting the responsibility for safeguarding across all agencies and stakeholders, and
ensuring clear leadership and accountability are in place throughout all the
organisations represented on the WSAB, and overseeing safeguarding activities by
agencies including reviewing progress in the recognition, reporting and response to
abuse

e Preparing and securing approval and resources from member organisations for a
Business Plan

e Producing an Annual Report on safeguarding adults, which reviews progress in delivery
of the Business Plan

e Establishing quality assurance and audit arrangements to validate the effectiveness and
quality of safeguarding services in Wiltshire and identify and address resources
shortfalls where these arise.

¢ Involving service users and carers and adopting an inclusive approach to the role of the
WSAB

e Ensuring a multi agency training strategy is in place for all workers in all sectors who
have contact with vulnerable adults and receiving regular reports on its delivery and
effectiveness.

e Ensuring effective engagement of safeguarding adults work with the safeguarding of
children, domestic violence, bullying hate crime, MAPPA processes and wider work on
community safety and public protection.

e Commissioning Serious Case Reviews where needed, maintaining the Serious Case
Review protocol and contributing as appropriate to Domestic Homicide Reviews and
reviews of Drug Related Deaths.

Page 47
35



Receiving and considering outcomes from these reviews and promoting opportunities
to share learning.

Promoting awareness of Safeguarding issues and disseminating accessible information
about the work of the WSAB via a comprehensive communications strategy aimed at
ensuring that abuse is recognised, reported and immediate action taken wherever it
arises.

The effective implementation of the Mental Capacity Act and Deprivation of Liberty
Safeguards.

Accountability and reporting

The WSAB has a reporting line to the Wiltshire Health and Wellbeing Board. It is
accountable for its work to its constituent organisations and its members are
individually accountable both to their own organisations and to the WSAB for the
following roles and responsibilities:

Contributing to the effectiveness of the WSAB in the achievement of safeguarding
objectives, the development of policies and procedures and their implementation in
their organisation

Ensuring that their organisation shares appropriately in resourcing the operation of the
WSAB, consistent with the lead role of the local authority and the shared
responsibilities of all agencies.

Disseminating information to their own organisation and related agencies
Participation in development, training and learning activities

Provision of a statement for the annual report outlining the contribution of their
organisation to safeguarding adults and, specifically, their contribution to the Business
Plan.

Make appropriate resources available to the Board and its sub-groups and task groups.

The Board will produce an annual report prepared in line with the South West Regional
template, which includes:

e Foreword

e Background Information

e Governance and accountability

e Summary of activity during the past year

e Monitoring and quality assurance activity

e Partner reports

e Local Progress in relation to national requirements
e Priorities for the coming year

e Appendices

The report will be presented to the Wiltshire Health and Wellbeing Board and then made
available to the general public. WSAB members will be responsible for presenting the
Board’s annual report to their own organisation’s executive body.

Page 48
36



8. Review

These Terms of Reference will be reviewed at the same time as the Board’s Safeguarding
Policy and Procedures.

National Policy and Guidance July 2013

DH (2000) No Secrets: guidance on developing and implementing multi-agency policies and
procedures to protect vulnerable adults from abuse.

ADASS (2005) Safeguarding Adults — a national framework of standards for good practice
and outcomes in adult protection work

HMSO (2005) Mental Capacity Act and (2009) Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards

CSCI (2008) Safeguarding Adults, a study of the effectiveness of arrangements to safequard
adults from abuse.

Bournemouth University and Skills for Care (2010) National Competence Framework for
Safeguarding Adults

DH (2010) Practical approaches to safeqguarding and personalisation

DH (March 2011) Safeguarding Adults: The role of NHS Commissioners; The Role of Health
Service Managers & their Boards; The Role of Health Service Practitioners

ADASS (April 2011) Safeguarding Adults Advice Note
DH (May 2011) Statement of Government Policy on Adult Safequarding

ADASS (Nov 2011) Carers and Safeguarding Adults — working together to improve
outcomes.

Care Quality Commission (June 2012) Learning Disability Services National Overview

DH (June 2012) Department of Health Review: Winterbourne View Hospital (Interim
Report)

HM Government (July 2012) Caring for our future: reforming care and support

South Gloucestershire Safeguarding Adults Board (August 2012) Winterbourne View
Hospital, A Serious Case Review

NHS South of England (August 2012) Report of the NHS Review of commissioning of care
and treatment at Winterbourne View

ADASS (December 2012) Out of Area Safeguarding Arrangements

DH (February 2013), Report of the Mid-Staffordshire NHS Foundation Trust Public Inquiry
and Executive Summary,

ADASS (March 2013), Safeguarding Adults: Advice and Guidance to Directors of Adult Social
Services

NHS England (March 2013), Safeguarding Vulnerable People in the Reformed NHS,
Accountability and Assurance Framework

Page 49
37



DH (May 2013), Statement of Government Policy on Adult Safequarding (Updated from the
May 2011 statement

Local Government Association, ADASS and Social Care Institute for Excellence (SCIE) (May
2013), Making Safeguarding Personal

Bournemouth University and Skills for Care (2012) National Capability Framework for
Safeguarding Adults

Page 50

38



B. Business Planning: The purpose of this business plan is to illustrate the vision that
has been agreed and to demonstrate how all relevant stakeholders will participate in
achieving the goals required to make the vision a reality.

The business plan will assist the SAB to support, monitor and review what partner agencies
do individually and collectively to fulfil their safeguarding duties.

In order to assure good oversight and continuity of working, the SAB has identified actions
in line with the five domains and associated outcome measures within the South West Self
Assessment Quality & Performance Framework for Adult Safeguarding. This was developed
in partnership with the Strategic Health Authority and approved by the South West ADASS
Safeguarding Adults Advisory Group which has health, social care, CQC and police
representation.

The Quality & Performance Framework Domains and Outcome Measure are:

1. Prevention & Early Intervention
Outcome: a pro-active approach reduces risks and promotes safe services whilst
ensuring independence, choice and control.

2. Responsibility & Accountability
Outcome: There is a multi-agency approach for people who need safeguarding support

3. Access & Involvement
Outcome; People are aware of what to do if they suspect or experience abuse
Outcome: Local practice and the commissioning of services and support are informed
by feedback and satisfaction levels of those who have had experience of the
safeguarding process

4. Responding to Abuse & Neglect
Outcome: People in need of safeguarding support feel safer and further harm is
prevented

5. Training & Professional Development
Outcome: Staff are aware of policies & procedures, their practice safeguards adults and
promotes understanding of harm

The SAB has agreed the appropriate actions within these domains which best address local
needs and priorities. The priority areas for this year are:

* Implement agreed actions arising from the Winterbourne View and Mid-Staffordshire
reports

%+ Establish the service user reference group and, in partnership with its members,
develop its contribution to the work of the Board and safeguarding system.

+* Continue work to develop a more structured approach to the involvement of informal
carers in the work of the Board and safeguarding system

Page 51
39



0

Continue to develop a communications strategy jointly with the Children’s Safeguarding
Board to support awareness raising and good information sharing across all Wiltshire’s
communities, linking with the Community Safety Partnership where relevant. Update
web-based information to support the strategy.

Carry out the agreed Serious Case Review to a high standard.
Develop further the new quality assurance reporting structure.
Contribute to the Peer Review commissioned by Wiltshire Council

Respond to the passage of the Care Bill and related regulations and guidance when
issued, preparing the Board to move onto a statutory footing.

Page 52
40



oG abed

Section 1 — Actions, Timescales and Lead Responsibility

NB — Some actions in this plan draw on the Action Plan the WSAB had developed in response to the Winterbourne View Hospital
Serious Case Review and related reports, and details can be found in that plan.

Outcome 1. Prevention & Early Intervention

Outcome: a pro-active approach reduces risks and promotes safe services whilst ensuring independence, choice and control.

Key Objective Actions required to address / meet the objective By When Lead
Responsibility

1.1 Safeguarding is a) Receive a report about the updated Action Plan (See 4.1 June’13 George O’Neill and

integrated into all below) arising from the joint work of the NHS and Wiltshire Jacqui Chidgey-

contractual processes with Council (the “County Action Plan”) and agree specific Clark

clear expectations and actions for the board arising from that. (WVH)

reporting requirements to

prevent harm, neglect and

abuse

1.2 Performance a) Confirm performance management and quality assurance June’13 George O’Neill

Management systems
record and indicate the
potential for vulnerability
and intervention

system for the Board.

Develop a system to identify and track people who may be
at risk of harm.

Consider whether it is possible to identify the potential links
between increased financial pressures (pay levels and
welfare benefits) and increased likelihood of people being
at risk.

November ‘13

LA to lead

Link to B&NES
work on this

41




G abed

1.3 Policies and
procedures are in place to
prevent unsuitable people

a) Keep HR policies and procedures and their implementation
under review, including whistle-blowing.

e |dentify a means of reporting back on this.

from working with January 14 GO’N/ MS
vulnerable adults e Deliver information to provide assurance March ’14 All
1.4 Steps are taken to a) WSAB to inform itself about AWP’s response to WVH report | September ’13 | AWP Board

prevent or reduce risk of
abuse within service
settings

recommendations on enabling community living.

b) Receive a report on responses providers are making to the
WVH recommendations directly relevant to them.

c) Agree and implement a response to the WVH report

September 13

representative

Matthew Airey

recommendation that LSABs and other stakeholders should | June 13
regard hospitals for adults with learning disabilities and
autism as high risk services.
Outcome 2. Responsibility & Accountability
Outcome: There is a multi-agency approach for people who need safeguarding support
Key Objective Actions required to address / meet the objective By When Lead
Responsibility
2.1 There is a multi-agency | a) Provide a financial statement and breakdown of costs for June’13 MS/ GO’N
Safeguarding Adults Board the Safeguarding Adults Board.
(SAB) of senior level , ,
officers who provide b) Ensure continued commitment from partners to the Board Ongoing Board meetings

42




GG abed

strategic leadership and
address

- prevention of abuse
and neglect

- promotion of
wellbeing and safety

- effective response to
instances of abuse &
neglect when they

d)

and its sub-groups

Support and monitor smooth transition of safeguarding
work from the PCT to the Clinical Commissioning Group.

Implement the actions agreed by the Board in response to
recommendations of the Winterbourne View reports

Respond as appropriate to further development of the Care

Review at Dec
"13 WSAB

Specifics to be
agreed

MS/JC-C/ LAT

. ) ) TBC
occur Bill and any consultations on it.
2.2 There are robust and a) Launch the revised policies and procedures April ’13
current Locl:-al- Multi- b) Use the regular SAMCAT reports to identify any problems Ongoing SAMCAT and QA
Agency Policies & about quality of hospital safeguarding investigations. sub-group
Procedures for (WVH)
safeguarding adults that
are in accordance with
statutory requirements
2.3 Clear leadership and a) Continue to monitor organisational changes and their At each All
accountability structures impact on safeguarding leadership in partner organisations. | meeting
are in place and visible b) Present WSAB annual report to Health and Wellbeing Board | Late 2013 MS
throughosxt the and Wiltshire Council Cabinet
organisation _ o _ .
¢) Confirm partner orgamsatloh ExeCL.Jt.lve reporting March 2014 7S
arrangements for safeguarding activity
d) Consider Memorandum of Understanding between WSAB
TBC

and Wiltshire Care Partnership, once MoU with Wiltshire

43




9G abed

Council has been established.

2.4 Professionals who in
the course of their work
come into contact with
vulnerable adults and
their carers are aware of
their safeguarding
responsibilities

a) Contact Healthwatch as it is established to discuss its
understanding of and influence on safeguarding.

b) Undertake an audit of training staff receive which focuses
on Safeguarding Adults and Mental Capacity Act

c) Arising from WVH recommendations about A & E contact,
receive report from the CCG about their action on this.

d) Learning and Development Group to report on staff training

audit

July 2013

September 13

TBC

TBC

MS

Jacqui Chidgey-
Clark

L & D sub-group

Outcome 3. Access & Involvement

Outcome: People are aware of what to do if they suspect or experience abuse

Outcome: Local practice and the commissioning of services and support are informed by feedback and satisfaction levels of those
who have had experience of the safeguarding process

Key Objective Actions required to address / meet the objective By When Lead Responsibility
3.1 There is a a) Deyelop’a communic.ations strategy jointly with the N September ‘13 | Communications &
comprehensive accessible Children s.Safegual.'dlng Bogrd to support a_1war.en’ess raising Publicity sub-group
public information and and good information sharing across all Wiltshire’s

advice about keeping safe communities; update web-based information to support

and what constitutes this. July’13 MS

abuse of vulnerable adults

b) Contact Healthwatch as it is established to discuss its
understanding of and influence on safeguarding.

44




/G abed

Outcome 3. Access & Involvement

Outcome: People are aware of what to do if they suspect or experience abuse

Outcome: Local practice and the commissioning of services and support are informed by feedback and satisfaction levels of those
who have had experience of the safeguarding process

Key Objective Actions required to address / meet the objective By When Lead Responsibility
3.2 The involvement and a) Devglop a more structured and cpmprehenswe approach to September '13 | MS / WSUN
feedback from patients, the mvolvemept of service users in the work of the Board
people using services and and safeguarding system.
their carers is an integral | b) Develop a more structured and comprehensive approach to | December 13 M? / C.arers
part of the design, the involvement of informal carers in the work of the Board Wiltshire
commissioning and and safeguarding system.
delivery of safe services c) Get assurance from partners about their arrangements for

involvement and the development of person-centred

approaches.

e Collated report on organisations’ actions eg December 13
CM

references in strategic plans, acute hospital Friends
and Family test outcomes.

45




gG abed

Outcome 4. Responding to Abuse & Neglect

Outcome: People in need of safeguarding support feel safer and further harm is prevented

Key Objective

Actions required to address / meet the objective

By When

Lead Responsibility

4.1 Prompt action is taken
and appropriate support is
provided in response to
concerns raised by staff,
clients, patients, carers or
members of the public

a) Report the results of case audits on a quarterly basis to
the Board

b) Receive a report about the updated Action Plan) arising
from the joint work of the NHS and Wiltshire Council (the
“County Action Plan”) and agree specific actions for the
board arising from that. (WVH)

c) SAB will focus on raising awareness about whistle-
blowing with and through:

e Providers

e The general public

e Carers forum

e Information available to staff in all settings
e Via care planning

d) The duty of professionals to report concerns to be
included in safeguarding training.

e) Develop WSAB member understanding of inter-
relationship between HR law and regulation and
safeguarding in provider organisations.

Quarterly
from June ’13

June’13

Next Comms
and Publicity
Task Group
meeting

ASAP

December’13

QA Sub-group

GO’N and JC-C

Comms and Publicity
Task Group

L & D sub-group

MA/MS/others as
appropriate

4.2 If the mental capacity
to make a specific decision

a) Arising from the WVH report recommendations on
mental capacity, DOLs and Mental Health Act

46




6G abed

Outcome 4. Responding to Abuse & Neglect

Outcome: People in need of safeguarding support feel safer and further harm is prevented

Key Objective Actions required to address / meet the objective By When Lead Responsibility
relating to the responsibilities: To be confirmed by
safegual:dmg proczss e Monitor transition of supervisory body responsibilities Ie-C
cannot be assu.Jme a from NHS Wiltshire to Wiltshire Council Aoril '13 ?MS
Mental Capacity pri
Assessment is undertaken e Formulate request to (i) council team and (ii) each
as required by the Mental hospital provider for a baseline report about their
Capacity Act (MCA) 2005 arrangements

e Reports come back to SAB

e Assess sufficiency of resource to respond and

promote wider recruitment of NHS staff and LD
colleagues to BIA role

4.3 The subject of the a) Undertake a feedback survey for people experiencing the | February 2014
alleged abuse is the main safeguarding process
focus of-all acthlons ?nd b) Audit implementation of the provision in the revised
proFeedmgs that arise policy and procedures for the involvement of the subject
durln.g.the course of any of the abuse.
enquiries and/or
investigations.
4.4 Adult Safeguarding a) Areview of current safeguarding resources is undertaken | October 2013 | Service Director

Investigations are

to assure that there is sufficient capacity within the

47




09 abed

Outcome 4. Responding

to Abuse & Neglect

Outcome: People in need of safeguarding support feel safer and further harm is prevented

Key Objective

Actions required to address / meet the objective

By When

Lead Responsibility

appropriately resourced
and supported

safeguarding system.

Outcome 5. Training & Professional Development

Outcome: Staff are aware of policies & procedures, their practice safeguards adults and promotes understanding of harm

Key Objective Actions required to address / meet the objective By When Lead Responsibility
5.1 All staff and a) Implement SAB Strategy for Competence Development

vqlunteers working e Establish arrangements to monitor training Ongoing L & D sub-group
with vulnerable o

adults have been e Identify SAB’s own training priorities and use Development | September ’13 | Chair/ Kim Holmes
appropriate|y trained Day to start to address

according to their e Focus on Learning development, implementing principles | ongoing L & D sub-group

role

of transferring learning into practice

b) Review training available to Care Managers and senior
managers with responsibilities to investigate safeguarding
allegations or incidents within provider organisations

December’13

MA/ L & D sub-group

5.2. All staff and
volunteers have the

a) Safeguarding adults training is competency based, in line with
the National Capability Framework for Safeguarding Adults

Ongoing

L & D sub-group

48




19 abed

Outcome 5. Training & Professional Development

Outcome: Staff are aware of policies & procedures, their practice safeguards adults and promotes understanding of harm

Key Objective Actions required to address / meet the objective By When Lead Responsibility
appropriate (2012)
knowledge.an(-i b) Safeguarding adults training links to professional Ongoing L & D sub-group
com|:.>etenC|es n development and appraisal systems.
relation to
safeguarding adults c) Safeguarding adults training is informed by local and national Sept 2013 L & D sub-group
lessons learned — for 2013/14 including Winterbourne View
Hospital & Francis Reports
5.3 Staff use routine | a) Evidence of safeguarding alerts from a wide range of sources Ongoing QA sub-group

processes to enable
people to
acknowledge when
they might be at risk
and signpost them to
effective support

reported to the Board as part of the quality assurance

framework

49




Board Membership and Attendance

Appendix 2

. . . June Sept Sept 2012 Dec Mar
Organization Designated Member
2012 2012 Dev Day 2012 2013
Margaret Sheather
Independent Chair v v v v v
Wiltshire Council - DCS James Cawley v A v v v
Wlltshlre'C'ounaI - Safer Pippa McVeigh o v A A A
Communities
WI|tShI'I’e'C0'unCI| i George O’Neill A v v v v
Commissioning
Wlltshlre Council - Nicole Smith (to Sept 2012) A n/a n/a
Housing
Wllt,Shlre Council - ClIr Jemima Milton v v A A
Cabinet
Registered Nursing Homes | Matthew Airey v Ap-R
Wiltshire Police Supt. Jerry Dawson v Ap-R
AWP Mark Dean v v v v v
CQC (annual only) Karen Taylor n/a v n/a n/a n/a
NHS Wilts & BANES Mary Monnington Ap-R Ap-R Ap-R Ap-R Ap-R
Great Western Hospital Robert Nicholls Ap-R | Ap-R A v v
Great Western Ambulance .
. Sue Smith
Service
Francesca Thompson (to Dec 2012)
RUH Bath v v A v v
Mary Lewis (from Mar 2013
; i Lorna Wilkinson (to Sept 2012)
Salisbury NHS Foundation v Ap-R Ap-R v A
Trust Fiona Hyett (from Dec 2012)
Wiltshire Probation Trust | Lynne Wootton (to Dec 2012) Ap-R A A v
Domiciliary Care Provider Helen Woodland (Aster Living) v

Key: v = present; A = apologies given; Ap-R = substitute attended.

50

Page 62




Appendix 3

Management Information Report on Safeguarding Adults
April 2012 - March 2013

1. Overview

Figure 1 shows alerts over two 12 month periods (2011/12 and 2012/13) however it
should be noted that 2012/13 data now includes figures from large scale
investigations (LSIs) and so these year-on-year figures are not wholly comparable.

There were 1,686 alerts in the 12 months from April 2012, averaging 141 per month.
This is a rate of 45.9 alerts per 10,000 of the county’s population aged 18 and over.

2. Alerts

As stated above, there were 1,686 alerts during the past year:

Figure 1 Number of alerts by month
172 177

160 159

143

57
49

I I

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar
M Apr 11-Mar 12 (excl LSIs) M Apr 12-Feb 13 (incl LSls)

Table 1 Average number of alerts:

12 months: 1Apr12-31Mar13 140.5 alerts per month (1,686/12)

51

Page 63




Alerts dealt with by each team are as follows:

Figure 2 Alerts by Allocated Team (12 month period)

407

F42011/2012
M 2012/2013

400

Figure 3 gives the number of alerts per community area and is shown as being 45.9
per 10,000 population (aged 18 and over) to show a comparison:

Figure 3 Alerts by Community Area per 10,000 population

}42011-2012
M 2012-2013
63
60
53 55
46
46 » 43 46
39
37 37 4 35
20 31 31 27 X 3
21 2 26 25|
22 21 20 W2
17 M 18 14
1 , = M 2] 10
1
5
& & ) &"eﬁ (;b\& & S eséé ~o"d & @é& .~o§\ .\>°6 & \$‘°(\ & F ,({;@} &0«*
&£ & & & S & D > & N NG NN S &
PN & & & F 2 & ®e> & &
NI o ¢ T 2 <N
eﬁa’(\’b il Q}Ibb
ke o
A%
52

Page 64



Alerts are received from a range of sources as shown in Figure 4

Figure 4 Alert sources 42011/2012
459 W 2012/2013

181

163 159 149

129

111 106 104

. < X < < s N <
%\.‘{\ S <°§* OO ,003' t—’,\g\ ‘;\QQO ’t\:& 0\\(}/ "6\0 N ")é g\,%\ \oo" c)\,'z"& é){? N
& & A L e P ¢ S ) GONRS &
& QD RSN & &S &Y ¢ &
RS S R K% PN &&}
NI &9 N Re o S
<& & & & < < S
C
)
@

‘Care Manager/Team Manager’ includes social workers, occupational therapists and
care co-ordinators. ‘Secondary Health Staff’ can be hospital staff or other non-
primary health staff. ‘Primary/Community Staff’ are GPs, district nurses and health
visitors. ‘Other’ can be anonymous calls, the Court of Protection, a professional (e.g.
solicitor, psychotherapist, etc), school staff or a local authority employee not
employed as a care manager or care team manager.

3. Vulnerable Adults Information

Figures 5 — 10 show information about the people who were the subject of the alerts
received.

Figure 5 Gender by age group ®2012/2013
745 2011/2012

Female OP Female YA Male OP Male YA

53

Page 65



Figure 6 Ethnicity M 2012/2013
1471

M2011/2012
154
61 51 = 63
White British BAME* Not Disclosed
(*BAME = Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic)
Figure 7 Client categories M 2012/2013
63.8% 2011/2012
58.1%
1.19%-9% 1.8% )
i O.4%= 0.3% 0.4%
Frail Older Learning Physical  Other Adults Mental Carer Substance
Person Disability Disability at Risk Health Misuse
Figure 8 Existing Customers m 2012/2013
1518 W 2011/2012
168 106
Customers Non-customers

54

Page 66



Each alert can involve more than one type of abuse. Out of 1,686 alerts, 298 were

‘multiple’.
Figure 9 Types of Abuse M 2012/2013
142011/2012
581
490
342
294 325 Jes
253 233
164
83 64
o L =X
AN S X AN AN AN
&o** &L o & & é,}("b I~
N 6\-\ O &0 NN \O &%
& N < N R <°
é\ \0‘7 c;\c
& ¢

Adult abuse occurs in many different places, although primarily this takes place in
the vulnerable adult’s home:

Figure 15045Locations where alleged abuse takes place m2012/2013

4 2011/2012




4. Investigations
A total of 608 Adult Protection Investigations were started during 2012/2013:

Figure 11 Adult Protection Investigations Commenced M 2012/2013
42011/2012
242
104
79
63 63 "
47
34 35 45 38 40
11 9 28 17
(AN TN TN A ORETRTRN X
T T T T |-=_'___'_- |-_4| T
<
/\Q\S> c’z}&\ o’é\d d’}{d (?}S\ c’é&\ (?}\6 c’§$\ oé{d "\@}5 &
9 S S S dJ S S R N
<@ \% \ N \% N N \% ° e
$ S N & & S S &
F ¢S ¢S
voO @ & NN

Of the investigations commencing during this time, 28% were not substantiated and
5% were undetermined/ inconclusive. A further 20% of the investigations that had
commenced during this reporting period had not been completed by the end of this
time; this is due in the main to investigations starting towards the end of the
reporting cycle.

During this 12 month period 589 investigations have been completed (some of these
investigations may have begun prior to this time whilst others will have commenced
towards the end of the period):

These investigations concluded:

Table 2 Investigation outcomes:

Not determined / inconclusive 40 6.8%

Not substantiated 178 30.2%

Substantiated 371 63.0%
56

Page 68



Table 3 Investigation Conclusion: 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13

Substantiated 138 124 340
Partially Substantiated 3 1 31
Not Substantiated 142 136 178
Not Determined 39 49 40

Investigation Conclusion ratios:

Substantiated 43% 40% 58%
Partially Substantiated 1% 0% 5%
Not Substantiated 44% 44% 30%
Not Determined 12% 16% 7%

Many agencies are necessarily involved in the investigations and where there is a
high number of multiple-agency involvement; this demonstrates excellent inter-
agency working on Safeguarding issues:

Figure 12 Agencies Involved M 2012/2013

E2011/2012

589

The nature of the alleged abuse will determine the outcome and Table 3 reflects the
fact that in 127 instances, there was more than one outcome for the alleged subject
of the abuse:

Table 4 Outcomes for alleged subject of abuse

Not Concerns not Substan-
Action Determined substantiated tiated Total

57

Page 69



Access to the Alleged Perpetrator 5 11 39 55
Access to Finances 9 13 28 50
Advocacy 2 4 13 19
Application to Court of Protection 7 9 19 35
Change of Appointee-ship 0 1 1 2
Community Care Assessment and Services 13 47 60 120
Civil Action 0 0 0 0
Counselling/Support 2 6 21 29
Guardianship/Action under the Mental Health Act 0 1 3 4
Increased Monitoring 9 42 68 119
Moved to Increased/Different Care 0 1 9 10
No Further Action 13 54 20 87
Other 1 6 4 11
Referral to MARAC 0 0 0 0
Removal from Property or Service 2 7 11 20
Review of Self Directed Support (IB) 0 0 0 0
Serious Case Review 0 0 0 0
Multiple Outcomes 11 40 76 127

Following the investigation, outcomes for alleged perpetrators were as follows:

Figure 13 Outcomes for Alleged Perpetrators 142012/2013

112 106 142011/2012

76
64 64 63

54 54
52

X X < (@ 3
& & F € N FE & & &
R R N CRN  o Q DR & & \J
< > QL & Q¥ AN A N RN &% X
NI I RN o B N I O SRRV O
& &L« ¥ OSSR S S A UMK S N
& SN N & & & L &
& N & o“\(\ o S < & &S S
A NGRSy &° & & & F N
& 2\ % < N e (o &
eé\ e o V‘"b Q'v o@ 6‘\0 v &
Q N { Q
(,00(\ ¥ < & ¢ ©

Outcomes for alleged perpetrators can also be a multiple of 2 or more outcomes,
which has occurred in 126 of these cases during 2012/2013.

58

Page 70



The relationship of the alleged perpetrator to the vulnerable adult can be anything
from a partner or family member, to a complete stranger:

W 2012/2013

Figure 14 Relationship to the Alleged Perpetrator
m2011/2012

293

In 88 cases, the alleged perpetrator is (or was at the time of the alleged abuse) living
with the Vulnerable Adult:

Figure 15 Does the Alledged Perpetrator ™ 2012/2013
269

101

Yes

59

Page 71



The alleged perpetrator was the main family carer to the vulnerable adult in 37

instances.

Table 5: Relationship of Alleged Perpetrator to the
Vulnerable Adult( alerts which became investigations ):

Partner
Other family member
Health Care Worker
Volunteer/ Befriender
Social Care Staff - Total
Of which: Domiciliary Staff
Residential Care Staff
Day Care Staff
Social Worker/Care Manager
Self -Directed Care Staff
Other Social Care Staff
Other professional
Other Vulnerable Adult
Neighbour/Friend
Stranger
Not Known

Other

60

Page 72

2010/11 | 2011/12 | 2012/13
43 37 26
96 100 99

7 12 10
2 1 2
72 121 368
28 34 54
44 73 311
0 8 0
0 0 0
0 6 3
0 0 0
5 4 7
25 22 38
33 31 40
3 0 4
15 13 14
6 7 1




Appendix 4
Glossary of Terms and Definitions’
Abuse

Abuse is a violation of an individual’s human and civil rights by any other person or
persons. Abuse may consist of a single act or repeated acts. It may be physical,
verbal or psychological, it may be an act of neglect or an omission to act, or it may
occur when a vulnerable person is persuaded to enter into a financial or sexual
transaction to which he or she has not consented, or cannot consent. Abuse can
occur in any relationship and may result in significant harm to, or exploitation of, the
person subjected to it.

Age

Age is calculated as at the last day of the financial year (the full reporting period), i.e.
31°" March or if the person has died before 31* March, their age will be reported as
their age at date of death. A Younger Adult (YA) is a person aged between 18 — 64
years; an Older Person (OP) is a person who is aged 65 years and over.

Alert

An alert is a feeling of anxiety or worry that a Vulnerable Adult may have been, is or
might be, a victim of abuse. An alert may arise as a result of a disclosure, an incident,
or other signs or indicators.

Alleged Perpetrator

The alleged perpetrator is the person who the Vulnerable Adult, or other person/s,
has asserted but not yet proven to have committed the abuse.

Ethnicity

Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic (BAME) encompasses all people who are not White
British including: White Irish, White Other, Traveller of Irish Heritage, Gypsy/Roma.
Gypsy/Roma includes Gypsies and or Romanies, and or Travellers, and or Traditional
Travellers, and or Romanichals, and or Romanichal Gypsies, and or Welsh
Gypsies/Kaale, and or Scottish Travellers / Gypsies, and or Roma. It includes all
people of a Gypsy ethnic background or Roma ethnic background, irrespective of
whether they are nomadic, semi nomadic or living in static accommodation. It
should not include Fairground people (Showmen/women); people travelling with
circuses; or Bargees unless, of course, their ethnic status is that which is mentioned
above.

° With the exception of those annotated * these definitions are reproduced courtesy of: Information and
Guidance on the Abuse of Vulnerable Adults Collection (AVA), 2009, The Health and Social Care Information
Centre, NHS.

61

Page 73



Known to DCS

Those customers who are assessed or reviewed in the reporting year and who have
received a service, as well as those who are assessed and/or reviewed but who have
not received a service in that reporting year. This group includes customers receiving
Direct Payments or an Individual Budget.

Gender

For the purpose of this report the gender shall be defined as ‘male’ or ‘female’. In
line with the Gender Recognition Act, transsexual people should be recorded under
their acquired sex.

Not Determined/Inconclusive

This would apply to cases where it is not possible to record an outcome against any
of the other categories. For example, where suspicions remain but there is not clear
evidence.

Not Substantiated

It is not possible to substantiate on the balance of probabilities any of the allegations
made.

Referral

A ‘Referral’ is an Alert which becomes a ‘Referral’ when the details lead to an adult
protection investigation/assessment relating to the concerns reported (these relate
to safeguarding referrals, not a referral for a community care assessment).

Repeat Alert

A repeat alert is a safeguarding alert, where the vulnerable adult about whom the
alert has been made, has previously been the subject of a safeguarding alert during
the same reporting period.

South West Local Authorities*

Bath & North East Somerset Bournemouth Bristol

Cornwall (incl. Isles of Scilly) Devon Dorset
Gloucestershire North Somerset Plymouth

Poole Somerset South Gloucestershire
Swindon Torbay Wiltshire

Substantiated

All of the allegations of abuse are substantiated on the balance of probabilities.

62

Page 74



Vulnerable Adult

A Vulnerable Adult is a person who is or may be in need of community care services
by reason of mental or other disability, age or illness; and who is or may be unable to
take care of him or herself, or unable to protect him or herself against significant
harm or exploitation in any care setting. This includes individuals in receipt of social
care services, those in receipt of other services such as health care, and those who
may not be in receipt of services. There is a danger that some Vulnerable Adults who
are at risk but do not easily fit into the aforementioned categories may be
overlooked, for this reason they are outlined below:

Adults with low level mental health problems/borderline personality disorder
Older people living independently within the community

Adults with low level learning disabilities

Adults with substance misuse problems

Adults self-directing their care

63

Page 75



Appendix 5

Case Studies

One

A 56 bedded nursing home specialising in supporting people with dementia failed
many standards in its CQC inspection. The Commissioning team worked with the
home to try to support and address some of the standards that had been failed.
However, it became clear that there were safeguarding issues which could not solely
be addressed via commissioning and that residents may be at risk of significant harm.
SAMCAT commenced a whole home investigation. The home had great difficulties in
engaging with the process. SAMCAT uncovered many areas where there were risks
to residents. They undertook unannounced visits to the home in order to ensure
residents were being protected and worked with the home over a period of time to
ensure they addressed the concerns, including putting in place training for staff. The
home owners appointed a new manager who gradually addressed the issues being
raised by SAMCAT and were able to meet all of the CQC standards. If this piece of
work had not been undertaken all of the residents may have had to move home with
all of the risks that are well known about moving older people with dementia.

Two

A small 12 bedded residential home caring for people with dementia failed many of
its CQC standards and CQC made a referral to SAMCAT who commenced a whole
home investigation. They uncovered major risks for residents including no care
planning, poor environment, no activities, poor medication management, lack of
management, no incident reporting and poor menu planning. The risks were so great
that SAMCAT advised that all residents should be moved to safer environments. All
residents were assessed and moved to more appropriate homes and the home under
investigation closed.

Three
From Wiltshire Fire and Rescue Service

“We received a call to a small fire in our responding area. The fire was out when we
arrive with slight smoke logging which was ventilated by the fire fighters.

There was one adult and one young child living in the property. The property was in a
generally poor state of cleanliness, cigarette ends discarded throughout, there are no
carpets in any of the areas and no food in the fridge. There is nothing to suggest
there was any abuse or any deliberate neglect however the Fire Service contacted
the Housing Officer and Social Services to get help and support for the family. This is
good evidence of a partnership approach to ‘early help’ for a vulnerable family.”

64

Page 76



Overview Scrutiny Work Plan

(last updated 25/10/12)
. . Scrutiny .
Committee Review / Task Group Apr-13 May-13 Jun-13 Jul-13 Aug-13 Sep-13 Oct-13 Nov-13 Dec-13 Offi STATUS (incl. date)
Cabinet 16th | Cabinet 21st|Cabinet 18th Cabinet Cabinet 24 Cabinet 22 Cabinet 21 Cabinet 17
Apr May June 23rd Jul Sept Oct Nov Dec
Alr Quality Jo;n;;l;s)sk Group (Env Review in progress MM/KLE New Task Group to meet 10 Oct
Transfer to Care Task Group Review in progress MM/SB New Task Group to meet 16 Oct
Clinical Commissioing Group Review in progress MM/SB New Task Group to meet 7 Oct
(CCG) Task Group prog P
Continence Services Task Group Review in progress MM/SB Inaugural meeting to be held 16 Oct
Review of AWP services Review in progress MM/SB Inaugural meeting to be held mid October
HEALTH
Continuing Healthcare (CHC) Health Nov MM/SB Update on action plan to be submitted to
-U Update 2013 HSC in Nov
m Improvements to HTLAT -
@ contracts incl pay structure, MM/SB Task Grgup agratedA Start daFe awgmng
L . further information from service officer
CD training and retention of staff
\l Local Safeguarding Adults Board Health Sept
\l Annual Report 2013 MM/SB Annual Report
Public Health Annual Report Health Nov MM/SB Due to be presented to Cabinet 26
2013 September
1 of 1 Date printed 02/09/13

6 Wal| epusby



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 78



	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	7 Adults Safeguarding Annual Report 2012/13
	Annual Report 2012/13

	9 Forward Work Programme

